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President’s Report 

Well this was not the season report I expected 

to write! The onset of COVID-19 saw our 

patrolling and senior competition seasons cut 

short and sent all of us into iso2020. 

The pandemic that has impacted the globe has 

of course impacted our club and curtailed 

lifesaving and surf sports activities. Thank you 

to all our members who have done their part in 

seeing our community dealing so well with this 

crisis. For some, that has been on the front 

line, whilst for all of us it has meant practising 

physical distancing, not being able to utilise 

our clubhouse, participate in training or have 

any social events. I am sure we all miss that 

connection with each other. The committee 

continued to meet and function through the 

wonders of video conferencing that many of us 

are now adept at. 

We put together a dedicated team to deal with 

the COVID-19 crisis. Under the leadership of 

Tamara Brawn, and with the guidance of LSV, 

we have put in place a contingency plan to 

deal with any instances of the virus around the 

Club and prepare for possible escalation of the 

pandemic. Thankfully, to date our community 

has done well in restricting the spread of the 

virus and there have been no known outbreaks 

that have required the Club to enact 

operational aspects of this plan. As we operate 

under the umbrella of Emergency 

Management Victoria (EMV) as part of the 

State’s emergency management services, our 

active members have been asked by LSV (in 

conjunction with Ambulance Victoria) to 

volunteer to assist with front-line care should 

an escalation of the crisis require it. I want to 

thank those members of our club who have 

volunteered for this – hopefully it won’t be 

required.  

The season was also impacted by devastating 

bushfires that had such an impact on the 

environment and communities and saw many 

of our lifesaving friends impacted. The images 

of the evacuation of Mallacoota will stay with 

many of us for a long time, and we are 

fortunate that the fires did not extend to the 

Mornington Peninsula.  

Outside of these events, the things that we can 

control have been fantastic and the circle of 

lifesaving has continued through all ages and 

areas of club activity with great success. 

Recognition of service for Andrew Gibson 

It is a testament to Andrew’s community spirit 

that he threw himself into assisting with the 

bushfire recovery phase early in the year, 

whilst remaining significantly involved in club 

activities as a Patrol Captain and Clubhouse 

Administrator. He decided though, that his 

commitments to the bushfire recovery 

endeavours precluded him from continuing in 

his role as Secretary and part of the Club 

Executive. Andrew has been in the position of 

Secretary since 2006, and his 13 years of 

leadership have been important in bringing the 

Club to a position of such great strength today. 

On behalf of all members, thank you Andrew 

for this great contribution. Of course, Andrew 

will continue to contribute to vital areas 

including patrolling, training and the 

committee. Thanks to John Gallagher who has 

stepped up to the plate and admirably filled the 

role of Secretary for the remainder of the 

season.  

Social Events 

Through the enthusiastic guidance of Rhys 

Cole, we saw renewed opportunities for social 

interaction. A great (and wet!) Season Opener, 

fun Trivia Night and another epic Muso Night 

to name a few. Well done to Rhys and all 

involved in running these events. We look 

forward - even more than usual - to being able 

to get together for future events! 

Community Engagement 

We have continued to support the Disabled 

Surfing Association with their fantastic bi-

annual event at Point Leo. It is great to see so 

many of our members, young and old helping 

out on what are always inspirational days.  
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A few our members represented the Club at 

this year’s Pride March. Well done to Club 

Captain Adam Lipszyc for his leadership in 

ensuring that our club is open, welcoming and 

accepting to all. 

Our annual Boxing Day Swim was a roaring 

success, with pretty good weather and record 

numbers. Well done to Michael Treadwell and 

the team involved in running this year’s event 

so well. 

We have expanded our program of providing 

surf awareness to local school groups which 

has increased our connection to the local 

community and provided new skills and fun for 

local kids. Well done to Julia O’Shaughnessy 

for leading this initiative and again to a range 

of members of all ages, who have assisted.  

We were pleased to receive a 2019 Healthy 

Skin Award from SunSmart Skin and the 

Cancer Foundation for initiatives including the 

introduction of long-sleeved rashies, as part of 

our ongoing SunSmart awareness. 

We held a day at the Club celebrating women 

in sport, which included a range of speakers 

and culminated in our inaugural Pink Patrol, 

great fun and inspiration. 

Sensational Nippers 

Under the wonderful guidance of Sarah-Jo 

Mason we saw another great year for our 

Nippers with a continuing contribution from 

many to make it work so well – even with 

record numbers! It was fortunate for the 

competition team that the Junior State 

Championships were held just before Stage 2 

COVID-19 restrictions came into force. There 

were lots of great efforts and achievements; 

well done to all of you. The highlight for me 

was the podium finish for our March Past team 

(second place in a hotly contested field). 

Massive thanks to Long John and Diane Silver 

and Jan Williams for training and driving this 

over the past few years, and congratulations to 

the team who delivered such a wonderful 

result to do our club proud. 

We also held easily the best Junior carnival for 

the season at Point Leo, helped by some 

cracking weather and the great collective 

contribution from so many club members led 

by Andrew Welsh – again another event to be 

proud of. 

Progression with Clubhouse 

Redevelopment 

I am pleased and grateful to the team at my 

work, Millar Merrigan, that we have been able 

to progress plans for the next phase of the 

clubhouse redevelopment together with the 

design skills of Cox Architects. Concept plans 

are ready for review by members and then we 

can look forward to progressing new and 

improved facilities. We continue to raise 

money for this redevelopment and the funds 

that we raise will dictate the extent of the next 

phase of work.  

Sponsors 

A most sincere thank you to our generous 

sponsors who have contributed financially to 

the operation of the Club. We look forward to 

continued relationships with these great local 

businesses:  

• Mornington Prime Cuts  

• Vantage Fuels/Bowser Bean  

• The Balnarring and District Community 

Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank 

• Burnley Brewing 

• Paton Estate Agents. 

We ask that all our members support these 

great businesses – and let them know when 

you can that you are grateful for their support 

of our club! 

Finally, I wish to sincerely thank all the 

hardworking members of your committee. In 

particular we have been blessed with a 

cohesive team of young leaders with Adam 

Lipszyc (Club Captain) and Andy Nott (Club 

Vice-Captain) and Brittany Morgenthaler (Chief 

Instructor) together with other young and 

enthusiastic members of our committee 

including Romy Lipszyc, Rhys Cole, Sam 

Richardson and James Paton. Outside the 

committee we continue to see great 

contributions from many young members and 

it was really pleasing this year to see 

recognition for a group of young members: Zali 

Cargill, Bridget Barnes, Bodhi Woods, Ella 

Laussen and Hamish Wynn-Pope received an 

award collectively for youth leadership from 

The Balnarring and District Community Bank 
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Branch of the Bendigo Bank. Well done to you 

all. Your continued contribution makes the 

future of our club look very bright.  

This year is the last year of our current 

committee structure and for the next AGM 

(virtual or otherwise!) we will be moving to an 

updated structure with some new and some 

altered roles. There will be an opportunity, as 

always, for our membership to contribute at 

the committee level and I encourage anyone 

who wishes to do so to reach out to myself or 

another member of the committee. Whether it 

is a committee role or otherwise, there is 

undoubtedly the perfect role for you!  

Simon Merrigan 

President 

 

Committee 

 

Position Name 

President Simon Merrigan 

Secretary 
Andrew Gibson/John 
Gallagher 

Treasurer/Registrar Kim Williams 

Captain Adam Lipszyc 

Vice-Captain Andrew Nott 

Radio Officer Nicholas Woods 

IRB Captain Edward (Chuck) Warner 

Team Manager Iris Cassell 

JAB Coordinator Sarah-Jo Mason 

Gear Steward Andrew Welsh  

Swim Captain Samuel Richardson 

Board & Ski Captain Jon Ford 

First Aid Officer Morgan Jones 

Cadet Coordinator Dianne Summers 

Committee Darius Alekna 

Position Name 

Committee  James Paton 

Chief Instructor Brittany Morgenthaler 

Senior Vice President Tamara Brawn 

Vice President Blane Paton  

Vice President Andrew Barnes 

Vice President Michael Treadwell  

Vice President Richard Ellis 

Vice President Luke Treadwell 

Vice President Max Jeffrey 

Vice President John Gallagher  

Vice President Julia O’Shaughnessy 

Beach Captain  

Boat Captain Mark McDermott 

Social Secretary Rhys Cole 

Mine Editor Romy Lipszyc 

House Administrator Andrew Gibson 

 

  

Point Leo Junior Carnival February 2020 
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Financial Reports 

 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Members’ Funds  

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Statement by Members of the Committee of Management 

Independent auditor’s report 

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 

Income 

For the year ended 30 April 2020 

 Note 2020  2019 

  $  $ 

Revenue     

Income  369,180  348,583 

Donations  70,099  42,259 

Income from Government including Grants  20,320  175,217 

Interest income  16,741  16,188 

Other income   35,947  -    

     

Total revenue  512,287  582,247 

     

Expenses     

Depreciation expense  57,782  55,064 

Grants and Donations  4,800   15,900 

Other Expenses  257,343  273,905  

     

Total expenditure  319,925  344,869 

     

     

Surplus before income tax  192,362  237,378 

     

Income tax expense  -     -    

     

Surplus for the year attributable to the members of 
Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  192,362  237,378 

 
    

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax.  -     -    
 

    

Total comprehensive Income for the financial year 
attributable to the members of Point Leo Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc. 

 

192,362 

 

237,378 
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Statement of Financial Position  

as at 30 April 2020 

 Note 2020  2019 

  $  $ 

     
Assets     

     
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents  862,586  715,270 

Trade and other receivables  2,364  2,627 

Inventories  56,863  57,072 

Other assets  0       6,005  
   

 
 

Total current assets  921,813  780,974 

  
 

  
Non-current assets  

 
  

Property, plant and equipment  998,588  966,802 

Work in Progress  11,580            -    

Right of Use Asset          400             -    

Total non-current assets  1,010,568  966,802 

  
 

  
Total assets  1,932,381  1,747,776 

  
 

  
Liabilities  

 
  

  
 

  
Current liabilities  

 
  

Other liabilities         (730)          231  

Total current liabilities         (730)          231  

  
 

  
Non current liabilities  

 
  

Lease liabilities          400             -    

Total non-current liabilities          400             -    

  
 

  
Total liabilities         (330)          231  

  
 

  
Net assets  1,932,711  1,747,545 

      

Members’ Funds     
Members’ funds   563,778  563,778 

Retained earnings  1,374,285  1,181,923 

Unrealised gains  (5,352)       1,844  

  
 

 
 

Total members’ funds  1,932,711  1,747,545 
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Statement of Members’ Funds 

For the year ended 30 April 2020 
30 April 2020 Members’ Retained  Unrealised Total  

 funds Earnings gains  
 

$ $ $ $ 
     

Balance at 1 May 2019 563,778 1,181,923 1,844 1,747,545 

Profit for the year            -    192,362                -    192,362 

Unrealised gains / (losses)            -    - (7,196) (7,196) 

         

Balance at 30 April 2020 563,778 1,374,285 (5,352) 1,932,711 

         
     

30 April 2019 Members Retained  Unrealised Total  
 funds Earnings gains  

 
$ $ $ $ 

     

Balance at 1 May 2018 563,778 944,545       112.00  1,508,435 

Profit for the year            -    237,378                -    237,378 

Unrealised gains            -     -           1,732  1,732 
         

Balance at 30 April 2019 563,778 1,181,923 1,844 1,747,545 

 

Statement of Cash flows 

For the year ended 30 April 2020 

 Note 2020   2019  

   $    $  

     
Cash flows from operating activities     
Receipts from donors, members and other income      429,686     335,715  

Payments to suppliers and employees    (264,291)    (255,388) 

Interest received       16,741        16,188  

Grants received      63,320      227,717  

Net cash provided by operating activities 5   245,456       324,232  

  
 

  
Cash flows from investing activities  

 
  

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment        10,772                 -    

Payments for property, plant and equipment   (108,912)   (462,288) 

Net cash used in investing activities     (98,140)    (462,288) 
     

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  147,316  (138,056) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year 

 

715,270  

 

853,326  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year 

 862,586  
  

715,270  
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Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 30 April 2020 
 

Note 1. Statement of significant accounting policies 

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is an entirely voluntary organisation which provides beach patrol 

and rescue services, first aid and lifesaving training at Point Leo Surf Beach and surrounds. 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 

stated. 

Basis of preparation 

These special purpose financial statements have been prepared for the purposes of complying with 

the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation 

Reform Act 2012. The association is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under 

Australian Accounting Standards. The committee has determined that the association is not a 

reporting entity. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 

requirements specified by the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 

'Presentation of Financial Statements', AASB 107 'Statement of Cash Flows', AASB 108 'Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', AASB 1048 'Interpretation of Standards' and 

AASB 1054 'Australian Additional Disclosures', as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2020 were approved and authorised for issue by 

the Members of the Committee of Management. 

New and amended standards adopted by the Association 

The Association has adopted all the amendments to Australian Accounting Standards issued by the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board, which are relevant to and effective for the Association’s 

financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 May 2019. 

The following standards and amendments have been applied for the first time in their annual reporting 

period commencing 1 May 2019: 

AASB 16 Leases 

The Association has applied this standard and has recorded a Right of Use asset and Lease Liability 

in relation to the concessionary lease of the land on which the Club house resides. The amount of the 

lease liability has been determined at cost over the next 40 years (the same basis for which the 

building is being depreciated). 

The Association did not have any other non-cancellable operating lease commitments. 

Impact of adoption 

The new accounting standards were adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such 

comparatives have not been restated. There was no impact on opening retained profits as at 1 May 

2019.  
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Basis of preparation 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and 

does not take into account changing money value or, except where specifically stated, current 

valuations of non-current assets. 

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise stated. 

In the application of the Association’s accounting policies, the members of the committee are required 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results 

may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 

current and future periods. 

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of 

the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Property, Plant and equipment 

Property (buildings), plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 

depreciation. The depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the 

useful life of the asset to the Association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 

(b) Inventories 

Inventories are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-

term highly liquid investments. 

(d) Income tax 

No provision for income tax has been made as the Association is exempt from income tax under 

Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(e) Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables 

Accounts receivable are expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 

are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

(f) Right of Use Asset 

A right-of-use asset is recognised in relation to the concessionary lease of the land upon which the 

Association's Club House operates. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost and depreciated on a 

straight-line basis over the remaining unexpired period of the lease or the useful life of the asset, 

whichever is shorter. 

(g) Revenue and other income 

Funding for Club activities comes from membership fees, donations and gifts/sponsorships from 

corporate benefactors.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable 

after taking into account any available concessions. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method using an appropriate interest 

rate. 
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All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

(h) Goods and services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount 

of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and 

payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 

recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 

statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST 

component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

(i) Accounts Payable and Other Payables 

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting 

period for goods and services received by the Association during the reporting period that remain 

unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days 

of recognition of the liability. 

(j) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow 

can be reliably measured. 

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of amounts required to settle the obligation at the 

end of the reporting period. 

(k) Impairment of assets 

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value 

in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its 

recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 

Income. 

(i) Current and non-current classification 

Assets and liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position based on current and non-

current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when: 

• it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating 

cycle; 

• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

• the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 

a liability for at least 12 months 

• after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• it is either expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 
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• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 

the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

(m) Comparative information 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparatives have been adjusted to conform to changes in 

presentation for the current year. 

(n) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires the committee of management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

historical experience and other various factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates. 

The Committee of management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to 

assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

NOTE 2 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for  

services provided by the auditor of the Association:   2020 2019 

      $       $ 

Audit services - Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd   

Audit of the financial statements       3,000 3,000 

 

NOTE 3 - EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

The spread of COVID-19 and related government restrictions will impact the operations of the 

Association in the financial year ended 30 April 2021. In the current environments it is difficult to 

predict with certainty the impact COVID-19 will have on the operating results; however, the 

Committee of Management have determined that there is no impact on the financial statement for the 

year ended 30 April 2020 and there is no material uncertainty that the Association will be able to 

continue as a going concern for the next 12 months and will continue to meet debts as and when they 

fall due. 

No other matters or circumstances have occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affect 

the operations of the Association. 

 

NOTE 4 - REGISTERED OFFICE and PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS 

The Association's registered office and principal place of business are Unit 44 113 Country Club Drive 

Safety Beach VIC 3936 and Foreshore Western Parade, Point Leo VIC 3916 respectively. 
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NOTE 5 - CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION   

 
2020 2019 

Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net current year 

surplus 
$ $ 

Current year surplus/(deficit) after income tax 192,362 237,378    
Non-cash flows in current year surplus: 

  

Depreciation expense 57,782 55,064 

Gain on sale of assets (2,803)           -    

Asset write-offs 11,373           -    

Movement in unrealised gain reserve (7,196) 
 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
  

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors 263 1,245 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 209 5,066 

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 6,005 1,695 

(Increase)/decrease in work in progress (11,580)  -    

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (961) 893 

   

 245,456 301,341 

 

Statement by Members of the Committee of Management 

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 

SAVING CLUB INC.  

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. (the Association), which 

comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2020, the Statement of Profit or Loss and 

other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Members Funds, Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to 

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and Statement by the 

Members of the Committee of Management.  

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Association as at 30 April 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 

year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s) to the extent described in 

Note 1, the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the financial reporting requirements of the 

Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012. 

 

Emphasis of Matter  

Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matter:  

 

1. As is common for Associations of this type, it is not practical for the Association to maintain an 
effective system of internal control over cash transactions, until their entry into the accounting records. 
Accordingly, our audit in relation to these activities was limited to the amount recorded.  

 

Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the 

basis of accounting.  The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Members of 

the Committee of Managements’ financial reporting responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation 

Reform Act 2012 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, the 

financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.   

 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report.  

 

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the independence requirements of Australian 

professional accounting bodies, of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the Australian 

Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 

SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and in doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.  

 

Going concern 

Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting appears to be appropriate and based on the 

audit evidence obtained, there is no material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  Those charged with governance are 

responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 

SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 

a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 

ABN: 46 143 986 841 

John Petridis 

Director   

6 July 2020  
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Club Captain’s Report 

Well hello from isolation! I will only dwell on 

COVID-19 briefly, as I certainly do not want to 

take away from what has otherwise been 

another fantastic season at Point Leo.  

The season in many aspects was cut short 

prematurely: competition ceased early, patrols 

were closed down in a staggered format, awards 

training ceased, social functions were cancelled, 

the Club and the foreshore were eventually 

forced to close their doors and gates to our 

wonderful club members and the wider public. 

These issues as you can imagine threw chaos at 

everyone, however it was up to a handful of 

committee members to essentially steer the ship.  

A Pandemic Team rapidly assembled and began 

liaising with government agencies to make swift 

decisions to keep our members safe. I want to 

thank these members and the wider committee 

for being so flexible, decisive and patient in 

some very trying circumstances. Every decision 

we made was on solid advice and was done with 

the safety of our members foremost in our 

minds. I want to thank all our members for being 

so understanding and so compliant in all 

instructions and directions. Enough of COVID-

19, enough of doom, gloom and toilet roll 

madness.  

The season at Point Leo was a cracker!  

So many members stepped up in so many ways, 

and I was inspired to step up myself and push 

forward with initiatives and ideas.  

Patrols were again the envy of many Victorian 

clubs. To our new and upcoming patrol leaders, 

hats off to you! Rain, hail or shine (often in that 

order) our patrollers were down on the beach, 

doing us proud. The same patroller base 

morphed into a wider water safety army, and I 

want to thank everyone who filled each of those 

roles – repeatedly – at the Club.  

Applying new patrolling members to patrols 

based on camp groups has been a great 

success – perhaps even too successful – as on 

one occasion the full SRC army did in fact turn 

up and swamped the remainder of the beach. It’s 

pretty darn rare to have 60+ patrolling members 

all at once, however these are the kinds of 

patrols we are creating: patrols that are rock 

solid, patrols that are based on mateship and 

comradery, patrols that will last for years and 

provide many with leadership, interpersonal, 

lifesaving and practical skills that prepare them 

for scenarios beyond the beach.  

Our devotion at Point Leo for patrol retention and 

mentorship comes at no cost to excellence 

– LSV regularly audits our beach patrols, and 

this season under the leadership of Ella Swaney 

and Rhys Cole our patrols were awarded 

975/1000 and 970/1000 respectively. These 

scores were reflective of both excellent 

leadership and our commitment to teaching and 

training high calibre patrol members. Well done 

to everyone who stepped up or encouraged 

someone to go beyond their usual comfort zone 

this season – it is showing! 

On the matter of teaching and training, our Chief 

Instructor Brittany Morgenthaler has again 

organised and executed a flawless season, 

including but not limited to, two training camps, 

multiple skills maintenance sessions, multiple 

award training and assessment courses. In 

addition, Britt has mentored and encouraged a 

fantastic bunch of young leaders, who are now 

well on their way to being qualified to train and 

assess as well.  

The Bronze Camp format took on a different life 

this season. The consistency and quality of the 

training was instantly notable as this new wave 

of leaders taught, guided, nurtured and pushed 

our Bronzies and SRCs to the limit. Not only that, 

there was so much support and physical 

assistance offered to these trainers that running 

the camp no longer felt frantic; it took on a new 

quality of professionalism and passion. This was 
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mirrored instantly in the attendees of the camp. I 

can attest that the calibre of Bronze Medallion 

holders at Point Leo this year was phenomenal. 

The level of respect exhibited to the trainers and 

each other, the dedication to the Club, the 

commitment to show up again and again well 

into the season were all observed and warmed 

the hearts of all trainers, as we put so much time 

and effort into running and training these 

members. An enormous round of applause to 

everyone who trained and assessed this year, 

and of course to our members who accrued new 

awards. A bigger round of applause to those 

orchestrating these initiatives – the impacts will 

last generations.  

As a final testament to the quality of these up 

and coming leaders/mentors/teachers, many 

make outstanding ongoing social contributions 

within the Club. The Pink Patrol is a wonderful 

example of how our young leaders self-initiated 

and executed a fantastic event to garner 

enthusiasm and momentum for younger 

generations to remain involved in the Club, 

especially our younger female members. 

Despite a premature end to the season, our 

competition team thrived. The aspect I like best 

is that the level of enthusiasm and training 

doesn’t waiver across the age groups – from 

Masters to Juniors, Flags to Boat Rowing, Iron to 

Champion Lifesaver - the passion and pride of 

the Lion was unwavering. The commitment it 

takes to travel hundreds of kilometres over a 

season for both training and competition can be 

taxing indeed, so a big well done to those behind 

the scenes who encouraged everyone to have a 

crack and give it a go. Well done to the coaches 

and sports trainers at Point Leo and well done to 

the Social Media Team for broadcasting results 

instantaneously for our wider member base to 

enjoy. A nod to “Macca” for reviving our surf boat 

section, and surviving bushfires, cyclones and 

pandemics in the process. The Club is lucky to 

have members with expertise in one field and we 

are even luckier to have them commit again and 

again to have Point Leo represented in these 

areas.  

There simply isn’t enough room to thank every 

person who makes the Club tick, so I will thank 

those who take up roles like running Nippers, 

manning the BBQ, collecting money at the gate 

for the Boxing Day Swim Classic, volunteering 

for first aid during carnivals, picking up a bar shift 

at Muso Night, writing a piece for The Mine 

– every contribution is valuable and the Club 

Executive thank you with vigour.  

I will break a promise and mention two names 

ever so briefly: Simon Merrigan and Andrew 

Gibson. This season will be Simon’s last as 

President and Andrew’s last as Secretary. While 

these gentleman will continue to devote large 

aspects of their lives to the Club in the coming 

years, it would be remiss of me not to thank 

them for their support and advice on a personal 

level, and to congratulate them for their immense 

sacrifices and contributions to the Club over a 

combined 15+ years (in official capacities at the 

least).  

To all those members out there who have been 

dipping a toe in and enjoying being part of the 

Point Leo tribe, I recommend in the strongest 

terms applying yourself to a casual or permanent 

role within the Club. Whether you’re a seasoned 

potato or a young chicken, it takes the whole 

farm to make the Club tick and I can’t believe 

that I nearly passed up on the opportunities that 

were laid before me so many years ago. 

Encourage others and give it a go yourself, you 

simply will not regret it.  

Stay safe everyone and be kind to each other. 

Listen to the advice of experts and think of those 

who might be having an extra crappy time. The 

Club’s big blue door may have closed early this 

season; however, the Lion army keeps marching 

on. Committee meetings continue online, training 

courses have recently been offered virtually via 

LSV, annual Club awards are going ahead as 

will the Annual General Meeting.  

Point Leo SLSC keeps moving forward, and we 

will meet you on the other side of winter as 

always.  

 

ADAM LIPSZYC 

Club Captain 
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Operations 
 

Vice Club Captain’s Report 

What an exciting and interesting season it has 

been for our club and for the lifesaving 

community. Although the season had an 

abrupt end, we had a highly successful and 

uneventful season which is a big win in our 

books! It goes without saying that we can’t do 

it without the amazing patrolling members of 

our club. Thank you to all that attended patrols 

or any water safety sessions this season.  

I would like to thank our Patrol Captains: 

• Sam Warner 

• Romy Lipszyc 

• Ella Swaney 

• Rhys Cole 

• Nick Woods 

• Andrew Gibson 

And our Vice Captains: 

• Jasper Romari  

• Brittany Morgenthaler 

• Bodhi Woods  

• Zali Cargill 

• Chuck Warner 

• Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite  

This committed team of amazing leaders help 

strengthen and educate our junior patrollers 

whilst coordinating the safety of our lovely 

beach, so thank you. There are a couple of 

new names in these positions this season, and 

I would like to thank them all for stepping up 

into these leadership positions and doing a 

stellar job.  

To all the patrollers this season, you did an 

amazing job and we are all so grateful for your 

efforts. Although we faced some challenging 

and interesting times towards the end of the 

season with COVID-19 we all pulled through 

and dealt with the situation as soon as it arose. 

With new guidelines from LSV we were only in 

need of four members on patrol. These 

members had to meet requirements to be 

eligible. Adam and I, along with the Patrol 

Captains, selected the four senior members to 

attend. I would like to thank all patrollers for 

your understanding during these odd times.  

With a total of 40 patrols this season there 

were a total of 6,323 hours of patrol and water 

safety completed by our incredible patrollers. 

Patrol statistics are detailed below. These 

alone justify our commitment and value to the 

community.  

Thank you again to all our incredible patrolling 

members who put in the hours to keep our 

beach safe. Patrolling is the reason we are 

here and to have the sheer numbers and 

depth of knowledge that we have is a great 

achievement within itself.  

Andy Nott 

Vice Club Captain 
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Pink Patrol

Point Leo SLSC held the inaugural Pink Patrol 

on Saturday 25 January this year. 

The Pink Patrol was an opportunity to 

celebrate the involvement and achievements 

of our female leaders and members at the 

Club. Thanks to the generous Change Our 

Game funding from the State Government, the 

day commenced with some very special guest 

speakers talking about their own inspirational 

sporting journey that has taken them on 

different paths in their chosen sport. 

Our very own Simone Munro (Life Member, 

Club Captain, Chief Instructor, Australian R&R 

Champion) shared her involvement with Point 

Leo Surf Life Saving Club (which started as a 

Nipper) and gave us an insight into how the 

Club has given her many opportunities to be 

active, be involved, feel connected, develop 

many new skills and develop her own self 

confidence. 

Sarah Collett, Vixens Pathways Coordinator, 

Netball Victoria talked about the importance of 

local clubs as the centre of the local 

community and how they provide important 

connections for young people. Her own 

sporting journey has taken her on a path from 

elite athlete to coach. 

Hannah Scott, current member of the 

Australian Kayaking team, highlighted the 

challenges of being an elite athlete and the 

many rewards the dedication and commitment 

to her sport has brought her. 

We were very humbled to have these three 

exceptional women visit us and inspire our 

female members. We thank them for giving so 

generously of their time to help us celebrate 

our first Pink Patrol. 

After some nibbles and a chat, it was off to 

prepare for our (largely) female Patrol group 

consisting of: Ella Swaney (Patrol Captain), 

Bodhi Woods (Vice Patrol Captain), Ella 

Laussen (IRB Driver), Charli Cassell-Ashton 

(ARTC Operator) and Miles Irwin (IRB Crew). 

They led a very enthusiastic group of our 

female patrollers and other champions of 

change for the afternoon. 

Many thanks to our young club leaders who 

organised the day – co-ordinated by Bridget 

Barnes. It was an inspirational day full of much 

enthusiasm and pride showcasing the great 

female involvement in our club which spans 

across so many different roles. Thank you to 

everyone who came down to support them, 

those who participated in the day and those 

who continue to strengthen and mentor the 

capabilities of our female members.

Sarah-Jo Mason 

First Aid Report 

The year in First Aid was yet again busy for 

Point Leo members, despite our season being 

cut short. 

Unfortunately, due to changes in the way data 

is collected from an LSV perspective, we are 

no longer able to quote specific numbers to 

compare this season to the previous season. 

There were four main highlights from my 

perspective. 

Thanks to our Chief Instructor Britt 

Morgenthaler, we have 22 members who now 

have their Senior First Aid award. A further 8 

members completed this award at courses run 

by LSV during the year. Congratulations!  

Several of the new award holders were able to 

gain practical experience straight away at the 

major events hosted by Point Leo, and I hope 

to continue this when carnivals and major 

events resume next season. It is a great 
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opportunity to learn front line decision making 

whilst in a very supported environment. 

The carnivals and Boxing Day Swim Classic 

hosted at Point Leo were very well staffed from 

a First Aid perspective. The medical team 

upon which we rely so much was coordinated 

yet again by Kate Stern. Thank you to all of 

those who assisted!  

We were able to administer the 

methoxyflurane inhaler or ‘green whistle’ to a 

patient prior to the ambulance arriving. This 

improves the level of immediate care we can 

provide in trauma. Thank you to the Point Leo 

based Lifeguards (especially Andy Nott) who 

have gone out of their way to become 

credentialed in administering this drug. 

This season Ambulance Victoria trialled a 

single responder unit based out of Flinders. 

This meant we had quicker response times for 

critical incidents. This is going to continue to 

be valuable to Point Leo, particularly for time 

critical emergencies like cardiac arrest or 

anaphylaxis. 

Point Leo generously donated a defibrillator 

and other resuscitation / lifesaving equipment 

to a volunteer grassroots lifesaving 

organisation in Mozambique called Nhatofo 

Salva Vidas (below). This will enable them to 

provide a higher level of First Aid care. 

 

I look forward to continuing to help our 

members gain valuable First Aid experience at 

our major events. This experience can be 

applied not only on patrol when there is less 

support around, but also in the community or 

at a workplace. 

If you hold a Level 2 First Aid certificate and 

are keen for more experience, please get in 

contact! 

See you on the beach. 

Morgan Jones 

First Aid Officer 

IRB Report 

The end of this season couldn’t come fast 

enough for obvious reasons; however overall, 

the IRB section ran incredibly smoothly thanks to 

all who have embraced the rubber boat. 

Our IRB season started with the launch of a new 

Gen3 Thundercat in November. The boat had 

been on order for over 18 months. Dick Ellis, 

Club founder and Life Patron, did the ceremonial 

honors (right) with some of Westernport’s finest 

seawater being smashed over her. She became 

the “Dick Ellis LEO 004”. The boat looks 

amazing and is certainly the boat drivers and 

crew fight over.  

Gear inspection is a bit like “requal”; I would 

rather go to the dentist! But there were no issues 

this year and we got a clean bill of health. Our 

gear is top notch thanks to those who use and 
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look after it. We are in great shape for a few 

years to come thanks to my predecessors. 

With the re-introduction of Surfboats into the 

Club, our space in the shed shrank. We had to 

find a more efficient way to store our gear. Nick 

Clarke welded up a new moveable rack that 

allowed us to store four boats where we 

previously had three. Thanks also to Gibbo for 

the finishing touches. 

When our old IRB tank sprang a leak Steve 

Laussen pulled some strings and thanks to 

Kingfield Galvanizing, we have a shiny new tank 

donated. It is so state of the art that the Club 

Captain was seen bathing in it (below).  

Mid November we hosted a boat licence course 

at the Club which was fully subscribed. We had 

15 members, friends and family attend the theory 

course and do the associated tests allowing 

them to get their restricted, unrestricted and 

PWC (Jetski) endorsements. Hopefully, they will 

be either driving an IRB for Leo or doing Jetski 

duties for LSV soon. Look out for further course 

dates later this year if you are considering 

getting a boat license. Minimum age is 12.  

Boxing Day Swim 

They say it was the biggest one ever, but they 

say that every year. It ran like clockwork from an 

IRB point of view. All competitors came in safely 

thanks to the crews who volunteered and stayed 

vigilant. It can be a long shift and the job is not 

done until all the anchors are pulled, buoys 

deflated, and boats cleaned and stowed long 

after everyone else has left the beach. Thanks 

all of you who helped. 

Nippers is another resource heavy activity. Two 

boats, 4 crew, 5 hours per session, 9 sessions, 

360 hours. I must thank Nathaniel (Nat) Clarke, 

Steve Northcote, Bryce Appleton, Chris Oldham, 

Nick Woods and Sam Warner for doing the lion’s 

share of setups and driving duties. Thanks to 

everyone who put a hand up to share the load. 

Special mention also to Kip and Finley Edmonds 

who racked up a lot of hours during Nippers to 

gain vital time and experience for the IRB 

course. 

Our IRB course was again fully subscribed. 

Bernadene Hansen with the help of Andy Nott 

and Britt Morgenthaler ran a great course and 

bolstered our pool of drivers and crew. They 

proved themselves at a challenging session at 

Flinders Big Left with only one roll over. 

Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) Crew Certificate  

Cameron Austin  Isabella Gluskie 

Grace Handley  Freddie Langdon 

Lucia Puleio  Christopher Oldham 

Jason Romari  Jasper Romari 

Tulle Scoffern 

Silver Medallion Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) 

Driver 

Bryce Appleton Nicholas Richardson  

Kipling Edmonds Christopher Oldham 

 

Finally, I want to thank the crews that filled our 

water safety requirements at the carnivals over 

the 2019-2020 competition season. Thankfully, 

the Junior season was completed before our 

lives were interrupted by COVID-19.  

We hosted a very successful Junior carnival 

thanks to Andrew Welsh and had to cover nearly 

all the IRB shifts. Steve Northcote and Nat 

Clarke filled nearly all our shifts at other carnivals 

in some very challenging conditions.  

Thanks also to Nick Richardson and Bella 

Warner for stepping up at other carnivals. Sam 

Warner turned full bogan and joined the Jetski 

crews and covered the Junior Point Leo Carnival 

as well as 2 days at the Junior State 

Championships.  

EDWARD ‘CHUCK’ WARNER

IRB Captain 
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Gear & Equipment 

As a club of more than 1,400 members, Point 

Leo SLSC is obliged to maintain a vast inventory 

of equipment to meet patrol, training and 

competition needs. Maintenance of this 

equipment and purchasing of new equipment 

follows a familiar rhythm each year. Patrol, 

rescue and first aid equipment are assessed 

over the winter months in advance of LSV Gear 

Inspection in October. Damaged equipment is 

repaired, obsolete equipment is discarded, and 

replacement equipment sourced. Considerable 

effort is required to satisfy SLSA prescribed 

equipment guidelines for us to successfully pass 

Gear Inspection and be well prepared for a 

season of patrols. 

Each year new boards are purchased to 

increase our stock of Nipper and Senior boards. 

In addition, a considerable amount of time is 

spent on reviving older boards to provide for an 

expanding training program. Repair and 

maintenance of these boards is time consuming 

and Nick Clarke undertakes most of the work. 

This is an enormous task and Nick’s generosity 

is greatly appreciated. 

To maximise the storage space in the gear shed 

some improvements were made. New storage 

racks for the R&R reels were installed along with 

racking for Surf Boat oars. The wobbly old IRB 

rack was removed and replaced with a new 

bespoke rack. A big thanks to Nick Clarke and 

Andrew Gibson for their engineering skills in 

designing and fabricating these racks. 

As a volunteer organisation we rely extensively 

on the generosity of members to provide their 

time and resources. The Legends patrol was 

highly active over summer and conducted 

several mini-working bees where equipment and 

club house maintenance were undertaken. 

Thank you to this dedicated band of volunteers 

for the multitude of tasks completed. 

Increasingly we require off-site storage for some 

of our larger equipment during the winter 

months. A big thank you to Travis Cargill for 

allowing us use of his shed to store the Nipper 

trailer. We are always in need of additional off-

site storage space and would like to hear from 

any members who may be able to assist. 

Acknowledgements 

Thanks also to Andrew Gibson, Chuck Warner, 

Nick Woods and Morgan Jones for the many 

hours spent preparing equipment for Gear 

Inspection. 

Thanks to all the coaches and activity leaders 

who continue to push the message of expected 

board and ski care. 

 

ANDREW WELSH 

Gear Steward

Clubhouse & Facilities 

This season was a quiet one for clubhouse 

development, by comparison with our ‘big 

rebuild’ of the previous season. 

The recovery from the switchboard fire of 

January 2019 dragged on for the whole 

season, with equipment gradually being 

replaced. The total repair and replacement bill 

was around $33,000. While it took a lot of 

frustrating negotiation, our insurers eventually 

covered the entire cost of our repairs and 

replacements – a very satisfactory outcome. 

Work continued on the ‘out the back’ area, with 

installation of outside showers and some other 

works to remove dead trees and level off the 

lawn to make it a more usable area. 

We were kept busy maintaining the beach 

access track. Regular rain continually washed 

out the track. Fortunately, our Foreshore 

Committee of Management generously lends 

us their tractor so we can replenish the sand 

and rebuild the track, which had to be done 

three times over the season. 

ANDREW GIBSON 

House Administrator 
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Education 
 

Congratulations to all our members on a 

wonderful season!  

A total of 133 new lifesaving awards have 

been achieved by members in courses held at 

Point Leo this season. As well as new awards 

being achieved, members have upskilled their 

existing awards on the Skills Maintenance 

days which were held in late November and 

late December 2019. The upskilled awards 

allow our beach to be safe for the public and to 

meet LSV’s requirements for each patrol over 

the summer period. A fantastic effort by all, as 

the majority of our patrols fulfilled all awards 

required for a full patrol.  

Throughout the season the Club held: 

• two Bronze Medallion courses 

• two Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) 

courses 

• one First Aid course 

• one Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) 

Crew and Driver course. 

In some of the courses we trialled the blended 

option, which allows members to learn with a 

hybrid of online and face to face sessions. 

We continue to offer training opportunities for 

members to help run Nipper sessions, 

compete, actively patrol and further their 

education.  

This season we held two successful Skills 

Maintenance days. Members completed 

proficiency assessments for a total of 317 

awards at these sessions. It was fantastic to 

see all members come down to upskill their 

awards. Thank you to all those who helped 

make the Skills Maintenance days successful.  

Bronze Camp was held from 15 - 21 

December 2019. The course ran well with 37 

successful participants achieving their Bronze 

Medallion. Participants had a range of people 

taking time out of their busy schedules to talk 

to the Bronze candidates. These included 

Rhys Cole, who is a crew member in the 

Westpac Lifesaver Rescue Helicopter Service, 

Dave Neal from Ambulance Victoria, and some 

Point Leo club legends. All participants 

thoroughly enjoyed the visits and were very 

thankful for the guests coming down to Bronze 

Camp. It was terrific!  

Throughout the course we had several trainee 

trainers working towards becoming Bronze 

Medallion educators. Well done to all 

participants and the trainee trainers for a 

wonderful camp.  

I would like to give a big thanks to John 

Horwood, Alf Treadwell, Anne Treadwell, Tom 

Mollenkopf and Max Jeffery who cooked a 

wonderful roast and spoke to the Bronze 

Camp participants. It was a highlight of the 

camp.  

Thank you to all those who helped run the 

course. It is terrific for the Bronze participants 

to meet the leaders of the Club. 

The 15th Adult Bronze Medallion course ran in 

November and December, with 17 people 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 25  

undertaking the blended format for the first 

time. All participants had some connection to 

Nippers and wanted to do Nipper water safety 

as well as patrol. Andrew Gibson held some 

sessions at Frankston pool and the remainder 

were held at the Clubhouse. 

Thirteen of the starters completed the course 

and gained their Bronze Medallion after 

assessment. A big thank you to Andrew 

Gibson for running the course and those who 

helped throughout.  

This season the Club ran two SRC courses. 

The SRC Camp ran over two weekends in 

early December. All participants were fantastic 

and very enthusiastic. It was a delight to see 

all SRC participants on patrol and eager to 

continue to learn. A big thank you to Sam 

Johnston, Judy Taylor, Sam Hunt, Nick Woods 

and Christine Houlihan for being overnight 

chaperons; and to all those who helped 

throughout the camp. 

The second course ran after Nipper sessions 

and on a few extra days. All 48 participants 

successfully achieved their SRC award and 

are very keen to continue to patrol. Thank you 

to all those who helped with both SRC 

courses.  

 

The IRB Crew and Driver Course ran smoothly 

with Bernadene Hansen teaching all crew and 

drivers, as well as trainee trainers. A highlight 

of the course was the group heading to Big 

Left to get some practice driving and crewing 

in the surf. This allows our drivers to feel 

comfortable as well as confident in driving and 

crewing in large surf in an unknown 

environment.  

Thank you to Hamish Wynn-Pope, Andy Nott, 

Ella Laussen, Bridget Barnes, Edward (Chuck) 

Warner, Nick Woods, Sam Warner and James 

Paton for helping throughout the IRB course. 

Well done to all new crew and drivers.  

The Club ran a First Aid course over January 

using the blended format. The course ran well 

with 22 members successfully completing their 

First Aid award.  

Several members gained awards after 

attending courses held at LSV and other clubs 

throughout the year. These awards included: 

• Advanced Resuscitation Techniques – 8 

• Bronze Medallion - 1 

• First Aid - 8 

• Silver Medallion Beach Management - 4 

Thank you to all the instructors and assessors: 

Andrew Gibson, Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite, 

Romy Lipszyc, Adam Lipszyc, Tamara Brawn, 

Andy Nott and Bernadene Hansen for your 

help throughout the season. Well done to the 

trainee trainers and thank you for your help 

throughout the season.  

Thanks also to Adam Lipszyc, Andy Nott, 

Tamara Brawn, Kim Williams and our trainers 

who assisted with the never-ending admin 

required to ensure our training courses run 

smoothly and that all our awards are 

processed. 

Well done to all members who completed their 

first award or gained more awards this season; 

it is a terrific achievement.  

We are looking forward to a new and exciting 

2020-2021 education season. 

 

 

Brittany Morgenthaler 

Chief Instructor

  



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 26  

Surf Sports 

 

Team Manager’s Report  

First, I want to acknowledge some great 

achievements in our albeit brief season:  

• Caitlin Robinson for an amazing Pool 

Lifesaving Season encompassing State 

Team representation.  

• Rhys Cole for a brilliant effort winning the 

Open Individual division at the 

Coolangatta Gold event.  

• Our Boaties family with Macca at the 

wheel, achieved great success by being 

selected for State Team Representation. 

We were certainly dealt an unusual and 

particularly challenging year in our sport arena. 

This started with the Endurance carnival 

having to be rescheduled due to extreme 

weather predictions. Then on the day we were 

served with actual severe weather - carnival 

off – carnival on.  

The weather continued to thwart our efforts 

throughout the season with the continued 

cancellation of events; in particular the 

Masters Championship was reduced with 

some water events cancelled.  

The Masters Championship double header 

weekend at Lorne was a disappointment with 

our Youth/Senior competitors left in the cold as 

event after event was cancelled. Our Anglesea 

trip was an “Antarctic” challenge, but one very 

bright day at Mordialloc allowed our Youth 

competitors to gain some momentum. Our 

Seaspray weekend away was also stripped 

back to a single day’s events as the rain came 

down. 

All bets were off once the COVID-19 

restrictions came into play resulting in the 

cancellation of the Victorian State Titles and 

Australian Championships. 

Our pool lifesaving Junior Team has grown. 

Thank you to Amber and Luke Skehan for the 

drive behind this group. Unfortunately, due to 

COVID-19 restrictions there is no season for 

them this year as it is normally held over 

Autumn and Winter; but we are hoping to see 

you all back on deck in 2021. We are still 

hoping that the Senior Pool Competition will go 

ahead with a tentative July start date. 

One thing that does not falter is the fantastic 

group of volunteers who support our 

competition team. Coaches, Officials, IRB 

Drivers, Crew, Pack up/Setup, Gear Transport. 

A very big thank you to all of you, especially: 

Jon Ford, Nick Clarke, Tamara Brawn, Tracey 

Cester, Nathan Cester, Chuck Warner, 

Georgia Cassell-Ashton, Charli Cassell-

Ashton, Kylie Clark, Steve Laussen, Wendy 

Handley, Di Summers, Lachie Robinson, Paul 

Doherty, Ellie Doherty, Andrew Gibson, 

Lindsay Lockhart, Ella Laussen and Jasper 

Romari.  

Also thank you to the Point Leo Committee 

and the Gary Tierney Foundation for their 

ongoing support of the Surf Sports section.  

To the athletes who continue to work hard, to 

strive for excellence and persevere no matter 

what - this sadly was the season that wasn’t. 

However, the events have allowed each of you 

the opportunity to reset and reflect, consider 

your goals, gain some new skills and work on 

fitness.  

A very big thank you to you all from me. 

Cannot wait for AUSSIES 2021; Sunshine 

Coast here we come! 

Iris Cassell 

Team Manager 
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Head Coach’s Report 

This year started off with a bang with some 

solid winter training programs being held with: 

● Saturday Gunnamatta sessions for 

surf skills 

● Wednesday mornings with Peter 

Gargulio for ski paddling/kayak skills 

at Patterson Lakes Canoe Club 

(PLCC) 

● 3-4 times per week swim training 

sessions at Fitzroy Swimming Pool 

and Pelican Park in Hastings 

● Longer ad hoc paddling sessions and 

gym programming done by smaller 

groups 

Congratulations to Rhys Cole (below) for using 

this program to win the Open division of the 

Coolangatta Gold. 

 

Over Spring we ramped the training up to: 

● 4/week swim sessions 

● 2/week ski, 1/week board and 1/week 

iron/transition training at Point Leo 

● Saturday Gunnamatta sessions 

● 2/week kayak/ski training at PLCC and 

Martha Cove 

Many of the squad excelled in this program, 

including younger and older more experienced 

members, particularly Josh Doherty and Harry 

Atkins. It was great to see experienced 

Nippers join the sessions throughout the year, 

as well as some Masters athletes. 

Thanks to Jamo Porter (Alexandra 

Headlands), Zayne Hamill (Surfers Paradise) 

and Peter Gargulio for their support of the 

program. Also, to the coaching and selection 

panel (Nick Clarke, Iris Cassell, David Austin, 

Lachie Robinson and Bella Ford) for their 

input. 

In late September, the bi-annual “Goldie” 

sports camp was held on the magnificent Gold 

Coast. We had over 20 Nippers attend this 

camp which consisted of 5 solid days of 

training in the sun and surf of Queensland. 

The days started with early morning swim sets 

at Miami pool, time for a quick breakfast and 

then hitting the boards for am and pm sessions 

at iconic Gold Coast locations (Snapper 

Rocks, Currumbin Alley, Burleigh Heads and 

Palm Beach), with guest coaching from surf 

lifesaving legends including Trevor Hendy, T J 

Hendy and Kirsty Higginson. The experience 

the kids gained, and skills learned through this 

intensive program was second to none and 

established a firm base for ongoing training 

and the start of competition. 

There were some promising results in the early 

carnivals of the season particularly Josh 

Doherty almost making an interstate Ironman 

final. However, as we all know our carnival 

program was cut short by large surf at Lorne 

followed by COVID-19. Coaches and athletes 

are looking forward to 2020-2021 by building 

strength using simple body weight resistance 

programs. Using a simple chin up bar (± power 

band for those who struggle with chin ups) and 

other body weight exercises, our strength 

program should dramatically improve the surf 

sports capabilities when we come out of 

restrictions. Water sessions in a safe setting 

over longer distances are also planned for 

athletes of all levels once the COVID-19 

restrictions ease.  

All enquiries regarding the Surf Sports training 

program should go to the Head Coach on 

surfsports@pointleoslsc.com.au  

Jon Ford 

Head Coach 
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Surf Boat Report 

After the successful resurrection of boats at 

Point Leo in 2018-2019 we were fortunate to 

field two men’s crews in competition this season. 

With only one boat, a regimented training 

schedule was established, and sweeping 

resources managed, to ensure the crews were 

on the water several times a week. Realising the 

equipment constraints, I was able to call on my 

old clubmates at North Cottesloe SLSC in WA 

and organise a loan boat, which provided the 

opportunity for the crews to train alongside each 

other in simulated racing sessions.  

As the season opener approached, preparations 

were underway with the Persuaders and 

Prospectors crews. This season we welcomed 

former river and surf rowing recruits Grahame 

Barber, Josh Nalder and Dylan Cresswell along 

with home-grown debutant Zach Richter. Taking 

a primary sweeping role this season was Brett 

O’Loughlin who swept the crews in both training 

and competition. Without Brett and assistant 

sweep Ant Davis I doubt we would have been 

able to race two crews at carnivals both locally 

and interstate.  

Anglesea provided challenging conditions and 

was not for the faint hearted, with crews feeling 

the full brunt of the shore break, some being 

shunted backwards at a rate of knots! Great 

effort by Zach Richter rowing in his first surf boat 

carnival. Zach dedicated this season to learning 

rowing techniques and surf skills and we hope to 

see him (and some of his buddies) back next 

season. Final results: Persuaders 1st, 

Prospectors 4th. 

Portland was a decisive carnival for the 

Persuaders; being the VSRL State Team 

selections. Cape Bridgewater is a picturesque 

beach; however, the seas create some unique 

racing conditions. On low tide during the rounds, 

crews were compelled to row a longer course as 

the waves were breaking over the turning cans!  

It was a tense affair being the deciding point 

score carnival and it came down to the final race. 

Whilst leading at the turn, the Persuaders crew 

were pipped on the line in a sprint finish with 

Lorne, who made the most of some favourable 

conditions.  

After an anxious wait for final scores, Point Leo 

Persuaders had finished on top points over three 

qualifying carnivals and therefore selected as the 

Victorian State Team Representatives. 

Congratulations to the crew of Grahame Barber, 

Dave Spiteri, Josh Nalder, Tom Skidmore and 

Macca. This is a significant milestone in the re-

emergence of our section and only the third 

State Rep crew in the history of Point Leo Boats.  

After an indifferent carnival at the Australian Surf 

Rowers League at Mollymook, NSW in February, 

and with the disappointment of the State Team 

racing being cancelled, the Persuaders 

underwent a mid-season refresh introducing 

experienced oarsman Luke Carey to the crew. 

There was some excitement amongst the rowers 

with the unveiling of the new combination at 

States, in what would have been perfect racing 

conditions, however, it was not to be.  

The Persuaders 

The Prospectors 

The Persuaders 

Victorian State Representatives 
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The Prospectors maintained their consistency 

with Brett O’Loughlin at the helm and were 

looking up and about in the final stages of their 

preparations for the States. Both crews, swept 

by Brett O’Loughlin performed exceptionally well 

in big seas at Torquay during the lead up event 

and survived the carnage without incident. The 

crew of Bryon Marshall, Dylan Cresswell, Ant 

Williams, Zach Richter and sweep Brett 

O’Loughlin are the epitome of a surf boat crew 

with good banter and comradery.  

The ‘Senior’ Prospectors 160 Masters crew 

called on their experience and survival skills to 

negotiate the gnarly conditions at Lorne, placing 

second in the 160yrs Men’s final. The crew, 

Bryon Marshall, Dylan Cresswell, Ant Williams 

and Dave Spiteri with sweep Brett O’Loughlin 

kept themselves in contention through the 

rounds to challenge the eventual winners Lorne. 

Special mention to Ant Williams for assisting 

Brett with the sweeping duties during the rounds. 

The success of the Boaties 100 Club fundraiser 

was a highlight this season with a function at the 

Club to recognise our supporters and draw the 

winner of the Boat branding/signage initiative. 

Congratulations to Absolute Surveying who won 

the privilege of having their brand signed on the 

competition boat next season. Thank you to all 

who have contributed (they are the ones with the 

stylish caps!). We have raised $11,000 to date 

and shall continue to provide opportunities for 

potential sponsors during the off season.  

Of course, none of the above would be possible 

if not for the dedication of the rowers, the support 

of Simon, the committee, the Bobbas and 

members genuinely interested in helping the 

section to develop and succeed. Thank you, 

Kim, for your relentless work and attention to 

detail (mainly our expenditure). Thanks also to 

Ant Williams, my sounding board and Tamara, 

my senior advisor, who both share in my passion 

to reinstate Point Leo as a premier Surf Boat 

Club in Victoria. Your support is sincerely 

appreciated.  

I look forward to next season with the prospect of 

a new sponsor and multiple boat crews.  

Mark (Macca) McDermott 

Point Leo Surf Boats 

Masters Report 

The Masters competition was a bit of a fizzer 

in 2020 – and not because of COVID-19. 

After a week of sunshine, the usual crew 

fronted on a balmy Friday evening at Lorne, fit 

and strong from a summer of hard training and 

fired up to extend Leo’s impressive medal tally. 

Coach Jon Ford organised some drills to 

sharpen skills and we headed for our beds 

satisfied and excited for the next day’s 

challenges. 

Saturday dawned with a blustery southeaster 

blowing straight into Loutit Bay with a solid 

swell rounding Lorne pier and a thumping 

close-out across the sandbar. A couple of 

warmup swims later, and it was clear this was 

not going to be a ‘fun’ competition. 

The first event was the 2 km run for all age-

groups. Leo’s six runners, Stacey, Simon, 

Nathan, Jane, Catherine and Marc ran well but 

didn’t make the podium. 

Ironman followed and it was soon clear we 

were in for a long day as the early heats 

battled to make it across the bar. The wave 

period was about six seconds and competitors 

barely made any distance before the next 

wave pushed them back. Jon Ford had won 

this event four years in succession and quickly 

opened a solid lead in the ski leg, just 

squeaking through the break with a great 

combination of skill and luck, after which he 

was never challenged. It was an emotional and 

exciting moment as Jon and Michelle 

embraced in celebration of the ‘Five-peat’. 

The ‘Senior’ Prospectors 160 
Masters State Titles Silver Medal 
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The following Ironman event saw none of the 

field able to get across the bar and with that, 

the day’s water events were suspended, and 

the action moved to the beach. 

Marc Aliotti picked up his usual lazy Gold in 

Beach Flags and the women’s Beach Relay 

team of Dianne Summers, Vicki Hood, 

Gabrielle McMeeken and Kim Aliotti blitzed the 

field to easily win Gold. 

Some further water events resumed later in 

the day and Nick Clarke easily won the Gold 

medal in his Board race to take Leo’s tally of 

Gold for the competition to four compared with 

fourteen the previous year. 

See complete results on page 49 of this report. 

Point Leo Masters Team members were: 

• Kim Aliotti 

• Andrew Gibson 

• Luke Skehan 

• Marc Aliotti 

• Vicki Hood 

• Jane Starr 

• Frank Christian 

• Stacey Lethlean 

• Dianne Summers 

• Nicholas Clarke 

• Gabrielle McMeeken 

• David Spiteri 

• Hugh Condon 

• Simon Merrigan 

• Bryon Marshall 

• Catherine Cunningham 

• Nathan Millar 

• Dylan Cresswell 

• Paul Doherty 

• Brett O'Loughlin 

• Ant Williams 

• Jon Ford 

• Amber Skehan

Andrew Gibson 

Masters Competition Coordinator 

Members & Club Life 

 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program 

What an amazing season we have enjoyed! This 

year a record 511 Nippers participated, and it 

was incredible to see the beach filled with so 

many Nippers having fun each morning. 

For several years now we have been faced with 

increasing enquiries and requests for 

participation, having to close off registrations 

early and leaving many people disappointed. 

This season we took a bold step and 

reorganised the program on several levels to 

accommodate an increase in participation whilst 

maintaining the quality of our great program and 

introducing new ways to enhance the Nipper 

Women’s Beach Relay team 
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experience. The changes were enthusiastically 

embraced by participants, parents and 

volunteers alike and the feedback was extremely 

positive. 

A new era for the Point Leo Nippers had begun. 

The significant changes included: 

The under 7s were allocated their own area on 

the beach and we totally redesigned their 

program to make it even more fun. Thanks to 

Tarena Murray for redesigning this program for 

the under 7s. Her experience as a recent under 

7 Age Manager was the perfect insight required! 

The under 14 program was given a complete 

overall and we introduced a broader range of 

lifesaving activities including: beach care, 

champion lifesaver come ‘n’ try events, social 

evening, Nipper graduation and first group patrol. 

We also gave our senior athletes a structured 

opportunity to connect with the under 14s by 

taking on the roles of Activity Leaders. They 

started their sessions slightly later to ensure our 

water safety for the younger age groups was not 

compromised and they enjoyed their own 

dedicated area on the beach.  

The daily program rotations for all were reduced 

from four to three, therefore increasing the time 

available at each of the activity stations of swim, 

board and beach (incorporating flags and 

sprints). 

The reorganised program was a raging success 

and we experienced some great weather and 

conditions. We were incredibly lucky to dodge 

any beach closures resulting from the bushfire 

smoke.  

Our program offered basic beach and surf skills 

and raised awareness of safety within the beach 

environment. We provided this in a fun way 

promoting a healthy and active lifestyle. 

However, the friendships that are formed and 

developed is really one of the program’s 

underlying strengths. It bonds our Nippers and it 

is so lovely to see families come together each 

season and create the environment with so 

much enthusiasm, warmth and friendliness. Our 

Nipper social night attracted record numbers this 

year as it is a great chance for the parents to 

catch up and say ‘hi’ to each other without 

rushing off to apply sunscreen or help with 

wetsuits. Many thanks to Steve Northcote for 

organising the night which included a karaoke 

machine for the Nippers. Thanks also to The 

Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch 

of the Bendigo Bank who anchored our BBQ 

(with supplies from Mornington Prime Cuts), so 

we could feed our eternally hungry Nippers.  

Our Carnival day is the opportunity for Nippers to 

compete together in teams in their age groups 

and support each other in achieving great 

results. It is one of the days our Nippers look 

forward to the most and there were many 

incredibly happy faces and celebratory sounds 

emanating from the beach. The day requires 

much preparation and organisation from our 

AGMs, so we cannot thank them enough for all 

the work they do to ensure the day runs 

smoothly. 

Our Junior Club Championships is one of the 

features of the season because it is when we 

admire the improvement of our Nippers over the 

season and celebrate some outstanding 

individual Nipper achievements. Our Nippers 

always want to ‘have a go’ and to see the 

Nipper Graduation - Under 14 girls 

Under 8 Girls 
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development of all our Nippers, particularly some 

of our reluctant ones, is always a highlight. 

Volunteers 

Our volunteers are the backbone of the program. 

With over 500 Nippers, we simply could not run 

our program without them. There are many and 

varied roles in the program and many people 

from over 300 families are generous enough to 

raise their hand and help. For our Nipper 

program to continue we need everyone to help in 

some way. What everyone does is so important 

and appreciated and it is what makes our Nipper 

program so great. From Age Group Managers, 

Assistant Age Group Managers, Activity 

Leaders, surf education, water safety, uniform 

shop, volunteer roster coordinators, BBQ, first 

aid, beach set up, helping Nippers find their way 

and much more. The tasks are endless, and it is 

only by people stepping up that the program 

happens. 

Thank you to all our volunteers - you are 

incredible! 

Thank you also to the broader Point Leo 

members for their incredible support of the 

program – Chuck Warner (IRB), Andrew Welsh 

(Gear Steward), Kim Williams (Registrar and 

Club Administration), Adam Lipszyc (Club 

Captain), Julia O’Shaughnessy (Activity Leader 

Coordinator) and Dee Longwill ( Nipper App 

Administrator). 

Junior Surf Sports Program (JSSP)  

The season was enhanced by our training 

sessions on Tuesday and Thursday evenings 

from October to March. Over 40 different Nippers 

attended these sessions. Thank you, Nick 

Clarke, for leading our Nippers so they can 

practise and develop their skills further. 

Junior Life Saving Awards (Surf Education) 

Thank you so much to our young leaders and 

former Nippers who give up their time to deliver 

our engaging Surf Education Program for each 

age group. These people include Britt 

Morgenthaler, Ella Laussen, Zali Cargill, Hamish 

Wynn-Pope, Andy Nott and Georgia Cassell-

Ashton. 

Water Safety 

A huge thank you to our Water Safety 

Coordinator, Anton Pound, who made sure we 

always kept our Nippers safe. We introduced a 

new water safety flag as a central briefing point 

on the beach and created a Nipper water safety 

poster for all to read and understand before 

taking up their duty. Thank you to all our young 

people who helped with water safety. Our Nipper 

program simply cannot operate without our 

safety requirements being met and to see them 

come back and help years after they have 

graduated is just fantastic. Our Nippers love 

having the ‘big kids’ helping and aspire to be just 

like them in years to come. 

A special thank you to our adult water safety 

volunteers and to the 13 parents who attained 

their Bronze Medallion this season – an 

outstanding achievement for every one of you. 

Your enthusiasm and commitment in supporting 

our Nippers is very much appreciated. 

Nipper BBQ 

We were fortunate once again to have Mark 

Hopkinson coordinate our BBQ. With a slight 

restructure, we cooked over 6,000 sausages and 

1,000 hash browns to feed our hungry Nippers. 

Thank you to all our BBQ volunteers and our 

wonderful sponsor, Mornington Prime Cuts, who 

donated the sausages for the entire season. 

Nipper Junior Competition 

The competition season was once again brilliant, 

and our Nippers experienced a variety of 

weather and surf conditions that not only 

challenged them but also improved their skills 

and broadened their experience. Many thanks to 

Darius Alekna who took on the role as Junior 

Competition Team Manager in a season 

demanding new ways to organise our team. A 

new LSV sports carnival app was introduced to 

help with the administration and submission of 

competitors, along with specific requirements for 

each club to supply qualified Officials at each 
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carnival. It was a season full of great efforts in 

upskilling our Nipper parents to Officials. 

On the competition front, our Nippers had the 

opportunity to attend six LSV carnivals (including 

the Junior State Championships) supported by 

competition training every Sunday from mid-

January to the State Championships in March. 

Many thanks to the Activity Leaders who 

assisted with the Sunday training sessions. 

A handful of our keen Nippers kicked off the 

competition season participating in a December 

carnival at Ocean Grove in tough conditions. The 

next carnival, Cosy Corner in early January, 

attracted 91 Nippers in brilliant sunshine and 

superb conditions. This is always a favourite 

carnival on the calendar.  

A few Nippers also had the opportunity to 

participate in a training carnival at Portsea in 

early January which was another great 

introduction to interclub competitions for many 

Nippers. 

The carnivals at Mordialloc in January followed 

by Jan Juc in February were a tale of two 

opposites. Mordialloc was sunny, warm and 

pretty much perfect water conditions – happy 

Nippers, happy parents. Jan Juc on the other 

hand was a day that started off drizzling and 

windy, and stayed that way for the next 8 hours. 

A huge credit to our Nippers for enduring the 

tough conditions.  

Certainly, one of the highlights of the season 

was hosting a Junior carnival (above) on 

February 23. 100 Point Leo Nippers competed 

and for many it was their first time. We are not 

always afforded the opportunity to stage a home 

ground carnival and it did require the efforts of 

many across the Club. Led by Andrew Welsh, 

with the support of our amazing club community, 

we delivered what can only be described as the 

perfect Junior carnival. 930 competitors and an 

estimated 1,000 parents and supporters 

attended. From set up crew, parking crew, IRB 

crew, BBQ crew (sausages again supplied by 

Mornington Prime Cuts), first aid, to catering for 

officials we did it all against the backdrop of 

perfect conditions and beautiful sunshine. A 

perfect Point Leo day in every way.  

In a carnival first - we reduced our reliance on 

bottled water. For a carnival this size we would 

typically use upwards of 500 individual bottles of 

water. Thanks to the generosity of Bluegum (our 

apparel supplier) we provided every LSV official 

with a reusable water bottle and offered constant 

refills throughout the day. Accordingly, at the end 

of the day our waste was a third of what we 

would normally expect. A new standard of 

environmental responsibility has been achieved. 

Congratulations Andrew and the team for staging 

this incredible event!  

The Nipper season finished on a high as 74 

Point Leo Nippers and their supportive families 

travelled three hours to compete at the Junior 

State Championships in Warrnambool on the 

long weekend in March. For the first time, the 

competition spanned over 2½ days. 

Our Nippers’ dedication to training and 

preparation was evident in the many finals berths 

we were able to secure for both teams and 

individuals. We were awash with a sea of Gold, 

Silver and Bronze medallions and there are now 

eleven of our Nippers who can proudly call 

themselves State Champions. We succeeded in 

an overall sixth placing for the Club.  

A full list of results can be found on page 47 of 

this report.  

Our March Past Team (above) again made our 

hearts swell with pride, but this time they also 

picked up a Silver medal in the process. Armed 

with a new uniform, new reel and new flag they 

were focussed on achieving great things. Many 
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thanks to Jan Williams, Di Silver and Long John 

Silver for their commitment to ensuring the team 

was not only well coached but also well 

prepared. This achievement was four years in 

the making and the margin between first and 

second position was only 2 points in the end – so 

close! 

Many thanks to all Nippers and parents for their 

commitment to the Junior Competition season; 

especially our Age Managers, Activity Leaders, 

water safety, accredited officials, coaches and 

parents who towed the Nipper trailer. 

LSV Awards 

Congratulations to the following Nippers for their 

outstanding achievements during the season 

which were recognised by LSV. 

 

 

 

 

 

Ben Hulyer U13 boys 
Beach Athlete of the Year 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Matthew Callaghan U14 boys 
Mike Martin Champion Junior Lifesaver Award 

 
LSV Opportunities 

Our Nippers were once again enthusiastically 

involved in broader lifesaving activities with LSV 

Under 13 LSV Development Camp 

Four Point Leo Nippers were selected: 

• Milla Ogilvie 

• Emma Williams 

• Layla Romari 

• Aine Curtis 

This event was subsequently cancelled due to 

COVID-19. 

Under 14 Champion Junior Lifesaver 

Development Day 

Four Point Leo Nippers were selected: 

• Matthew Callaghan 

• Henry Laussen 

• Sienna Davey 

• Ruby Hyatt 

Fundraising for the wider community 

$3,443.65 was raised by can rattles towards the 

Bushfire Appeal at the Nipper Parents social 

night, the final Nipper session and the Nipper 

BBQs. An absolutely wonderful effort by all. 

Finally, thank you to our Junior Club Captains - 

Matilda Hunt and Matthew Callaghan and Junior 

Vice Captains - Ruby Johnstone and Henry 

Laussen. These Under 14s showed great 

dedication to surf lifesaving and have led our 

Nippers with great enthusiasm and commitment 

throughout the season.  

Thanks to our Under 14 cohort who graduated 

from Nippers this season and were great 

mentors to our younger Nippers. We hope you 

have enjoyed your special Nipper journey and 

we look forward to seeing you back next season 

helping our younger age groups with your great 

skills and knowledge, as you are always 

welcome at Nippers. 

They say, ‘it takes a village to raise a Nipper’. At 

Point Leo, we are an incredibly supportive and 

fun village that loves to develop beach and surf 

skills for our children in a very welcoming, 

nurturing and inclusive environment for all.  

We have experienced another great Nipper 

season at Point Leo thanks to our great culture. 

Let’s do it all again next season!

Sarah-Jo Mason 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program Coordinator 
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Cadets 

The focus of the Cadet section of Point Leo 

SLSC is to keep members aged 14 to 17 

involved and engaged in the life of the Club. This 

involves ensuring that they are aware of the 

different pathways available to them: from 

patrols, supporting the Junior Surf Lifesaving 

Program through water safety provision and 

activity leadership, making the transition to 

senior competition and surf sports, completing 

advanced lifesaving awards and finally taking 

part in the many social activities on offer 

(including hanging at the beach with friends). 

Evident from this varied list of activities is the 

range of sections of the Club that are involved in 

supporting the Cadet group to find their place 

within our extended community.  

For 15-year olds the season commenced with 

the Bronze Camp. This camp is organised by the 

Chief Instructor, Brittany Morgenthaler, with the 

help of her growing band of training officers.  

2019-2020 saw the U14/U15 competitors 

continue to be included in the Youth section of 

Senior carnivals. Support for this transition 

comes from the Team Manager, Iris Cassell and 

Head Coach, Jon Ford. The group was also 

supported on the beach by senior competitor 

Lachie Robinson who was out of action due to 

injury.  

The U15 and U17 Cadets returned in significant 

numbers again to undertake water safety for the 

Lions age groups at Nippers. They also took up 

Junior Activity Leader roles and assisted with the 

new U14 program which was developed and led 

by Sarah-Jo Mason. 

This year saw the establishment of a Youth 

Leadership Group prior to the commencement of 

the season. A group of young members, Cadets 

themselves in recent years, came together to 

generate ideas for supporting Cadet 

engagement.  

Specifically, the Youth Leadership Group aims 

were to: 

● provide authentic leadership 

opportunities for the next generation of 

club leaders and support them in their 

leadership journey 

● develop meaningful relationships with 

the Cadet group to facilitate a stronger 

sense of connectedness to the Club and 

assist with development of a positive 

youth culture 

● build social connections through 

identifying, providing and promoting 

social activities for the Cadet age group 

● promote the variety of surf lifesaving 

pathways as an engagement strategy to 

the Cadet age group  

The club was successful in obtaining a grant 

under the State Government Change Our Game 

program that supports female and gender 

inclusive initiatives in sport. The YLG organised 

the Club’s inaugural Pink Patrol, with a 

celebration led by Point Leo’s only female Club 

Captain, Life Member and Hall of Famer Simone 

Munro, Australian Kayak team member and club 

member Hannah Scott and elite netballer Sarah 

Collett. The Pink Patrol was ably led by Patrol 

Captain Ella Swaney and Patrol Vice-Captain 

Bodhi Woods. Unfortunately, a planned Bronzie 

Reunion night was postponed due to the impact 

of COVID-19 and is now planned as a ‘kick-off’ 

for the 2020-2021 season.  

A big congratulations to members of the Young 

Leaders Group for their involvement as our next 

wave of club leaders and Cadet mentors and for 

bringing their enthusiasm and ideas – Bridget 

Barnes, Bodhi Woods, Ella Laussen, Caitlin 

Robinson, Zali Cargill, Georgia Cassell-Ashton, 

Charli Cassell-Ashton and Ellie Doherty. 

Andrew Welsh and his band of merry helpers 

organised another Point Leo Trivia Night on 

behalf of the Cadet section. The Trivia Night is 

one of the social calendar highlights of the 

summer season. 

Looking forward to another year of fun, 

friendship and lifesaving in the 2020-2021 

season. 

Diane Summers 

Cadet Co-ordinator 
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Honorary Life Members 

This year the Club appointed four new Life 

Members: 

• Peter Braithwaite 

• Blane Paton 

• Luke Treadwell 

• Michael Treadwell 

Election as Honorary Life Member is one of the 

highest awards any club can bestow on a 

member. Each of the four new Life Members of 

Point Leo SLSC is very worthy of this honour 

with years of service and consistent behaviour 

that reflects the values that we all hold so dear. 

Peter Braithwaite joined the Club in 1963 and 

became an avid patroller. From 1965 he held 

Instructor and then Chief Instructor roles, before 

joining the Committee in 1970 as a general 

member and then Vice President until he moved 

to WA for work in 1977. Peter was a founding 

member and inaugural President of The Bobbas 

and has continued to play an active role in this 

important fundraising and club support group for 

over 50 years. More recent members will know 

Peter from his work flipping snags on the Nipper 

BBQ each January. 

Blane Paton was active as a young man in the 

late 1960s and then re-joined with vigour when 

his children started Nippers in 2004. After 

gaining his Bronze in 1964 he was Board and 

Ski captain from 1967 to 1970. He joined the 

committee again in 2004 and has held various 

roles, most notably as IRB Captain and as a 

mentor to members in the IRB area. He has held 

an elected position at the Club for 18 of his 19 

years of membership – which is an impressive 

feat. Perhaps his most significant achievement 

has been the redevelopment of the IRB section 

with a focus on having the best rescue-ready 

equipment possible and training and supporting 

drivers and crew. 

Luke Treadwell has been a member for 28 

years, gaining his Bronze in 2001. During this 

time, he has served on the committee for 11 

years as IRB Captain and Vice President. He is 

a leader in the lifesaving services section of the 

Club with stints as Patrol and Vice Patrol 

Captain. His passion for lifesaving was rewarded 

with selection to the coveted Surf Lifesaving 

Australia National Leadership College in 2008. 

While still an active patroller, with his brother 

Mick he was awarded by LSV, a SLSA 

Meritorious Award and a Mornington Shire 

Council Australia Day Bravery Award for a major 

rescue. Luke most recently has shone in his role 

as Project Manager on the Clubhouse 

refurbishment project. 

Michael Treadwell has 28 years of membership 

of the Point Leo SLSC. After gaining his Bronze 

medallion in 2001 he went on to gain a range of 

lifesaving awards including Silver Medallion 

Training Officer. He consistently logs many 

hours of patrol each summer. Mick joined the 

committee in 2006 as Radio Officer and 

progressed to Vice President with a focus on 

Grants and Government Liaison. Working with 

others he has successfully gained significant 

funding for the Club and performs many hours of 

IRB duty during Nippers and carnivals. As the 

coordinator of the Boxing Day Swim sub-

committee he has mentored a group of younger 

members to take on leadership positions. After 

the successful rescue with his brother Luke he 

was awarded by LSV, a SLSA Meritorious Award 

and the Mornington Shire Council Australia Day 

Bravery Award. Mick also did not hesitate to 

assist a shark attack victim while holidaying in 

Byron Bay.  

Congratulations to our four newest Life Members 

on this well-deserved honour.  

Tamara Brawn 

Honorary Life Members Committee 

Gary Tierney Foundation 

The Past Twelve Months 

It is now ten years since the Gary Tierney 

Foundation was established and it is worth 

reflecting on why we are here, and what we have 

achieved.  

The late Gary Tierney joined the Point Leo Surf 

Life Saving Club in 1964 as a Junior member 
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and retained a passion for the Club until his 

untimely death in November 2009. A champion 

surf swimmer, Gary served for many years on 

the Point Leo committee, holding various 

positions including Club President. Behind the 

scenes, Gary also generously provided 

significant financial support to the Club and 

individual members, as well as fulfilling an 

important mentoring role. To perpetuate Gary’s 

memory the Club established the Gary Tierney 

Foundation Fund in 2010. 

In the past decade, the Foundation has awarded 

14 Fellowships and granted more than $50,000 

to deserving young members of the Club. In 

addition to the annual Fellowships, there have 

been Special Purpose grants made to individual 

members and a major contribution to the Club’s 

LifeChanger Program. In ten years, nearly 

$230,000 in funds have been raised, 

complemented by investment earnings of some 

$55,000. The Fund’s corpus stands at over 

$230,000, which will continue to provide the 

income to allow us to support members for many 

years to come. Those who knew Gary miss him 

greatly, but we are pleased to continue his 

legacy, albeit in small measure compared to the 

man himself.  

With many lifesaving activities cancelled due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic, the need for financial 

support, especially for competitors, declined this 

year. The Club’s LifeChanger program did not 

proceed in the past 12 months and a Foundation 

contribution toward the cost was not requested, 

and as the National Titles at Broadbeach, 

Queensland were cancelled, travel cost 

assistance was not needed. In the previous 12 

months $5,800 was provided for these areas by 

the Foundation. We were however very pleased 

to make a Fellowship award to an outstanding 

young member during the year. 

Financials 

As of 30 April 2020, the Foundation funds 

balance stands at $235,276 an increase of 

$4815 over the balance as of 30 April 2019. 

Over the 12 months period income to the 

Foundation was made up of $12,586 from 

donations and interest from the bank account 

balance and bank term deposits. Outgoings for 

Fellowship Grants totalled $4,800. 

The Foundation holds a long-term investment of 

$70,000 in the Surf Life Saving Rescue Fund 

which was valued at $74,392 on 30 April 2020, a 

downturn of $2,972 since 30 April 2019. The 

decline in value of this investment is consistent 

with balanced investment funds across the globe 

due to the slowdown in the global financial 

markets and the resultant lower stock exchange 

valuations as a result of concerns around the 

COVID-19 pandemic. 

The Advisory Board will be watching this 

investment closely. The balance of funds 

invested of $160,884 is with The Balnarring and 

District Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo 

Bank in cash and term deposits at competitive 

rates of interest. 

Gary Tierney Foundation 2020 Fellow – Rhys 

Cole 

The 2020 Fellowship was awarded to Rhys Cole. 

Rhys, who is a top-class competitor, transferred 

to the Club from Mt Martha Lifesaving Club, 

where he had been a member for 11 years, to 

develop further as a competitor.  

Rhys has fitted in very well at Point Leo. In the 

current season he is a Patrol Captain, has joined 

the Club committee as Social Coordinator, 

assisted with coaching at the Bronze Camp and 

previously with the LifeChanger Program. He 

has competed for the Club with success at local 

carnivals, at the States and the Nationals and in 

the Coolangatta Gold. 

Back: Haydn Tierney, Mark Tierney, Rhys Cole. 

Front: Eva Tierney, Asher Tierney, Isla Tierney, and 

GTF Board Patron Louise Tierney 
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Over the season he worked as a paid LSV 

Lifeguard and has volunteered with the Westpac 

Lifesaver Rescue Helicopter Service, becoming 

a qualified rescue crewman and is training to 

become a winch operator.  

Rhys’s 2020 GTF Fellowship Award was 

announced at the Club’s annual Muso Night on 

24 January 2020. A more formal presentation 

was envisaged for Presentation Night this year. 

Previous recipients of the Fellowship Awards 

are: 

• 2011 Lachlan Pearse 

• 2012 Victoria Roadnight and Tom 

McFarlane 

• 2013 Rose Anderson 

• 2014 Jack Garner 

• 2015 Bella Ford and Zachary Richter 

• 2016 Caleb Gray 

• 2017 Brittany Morgenthaler and Andrew 

Nott 

• 2018 Lachlan Robinson 

• 2019 Josh Doherty and Sam Richardson 

The Future 

The Advisory Board will continue to provide 

financial support to allow younger members of 

Point Leo SLSC to fulfil their potential in surf 

lifesaving. The Foundation will provide grants or 

funding as Fellowship Grants or as Special 

Purpose Grants. 

The Board is interested to hear from more 

members about how they can be assisted by the 

Foundation and will be promoting its work and 

opportunities in the lead up to the coming 

season. It is planned to put together a 

promotional video and to continue to address 

participants at the annual Bronze Camp. A 

permanent clubhouse display of the names of all 

Fellows is being explored. The Board members 

will also offer to assist future Fellowship 

nominees with the content and context of the 

official nominations. 

The Board also agreed that the Foundation 

would extend its grants program to include 

contributions to the cost of club members 

participating in appropriate development 

activities such as the Somers Camp. 

Gary Tierney Foundation Governance 

The Gary Tierney Foundation is managed by an 

Advisory Board. On 30 April 2020, the Board 

consisted of Tom Mollenkopf (Chairperson), 

John Horwood, Haydn Tierney, Bella Ford, 

Kelvin Anderson, Tamara Brawn and Luke 

Treadwell. During the year one of the long-term 

Advisory Board members, Ian Knight, stepped 

down and Luke Treadwell accepted our invitation 

to join the Board. 

The Foundation’s Patron is Louise Tierney. Over 

the past 12 months the Advisory Board has met 

formally on two occasions and on a number of 

informal occasions. The Foundation’s finances 

are audited annually as part of the Club’s 

statutory audit and the Foundation maintains a 

separate bank account to ensure that donations 

are quarantined and only used in accordance 

with, and as specified by, the Foundation’s 

Governance Charter. 

TOM MOLLENKOPF 

Chairperson, Gary Tierney Foundation

Mornington Prime Cuts Point Leo Swim Classic 

This year the 2019 Mornington Prime Cuts 

Point Leo Swim Classic was an excellent day, 

with over 500 entries across the four main 

events. Participant numbers were: 

• 280 swimmers in the 1.2km Swim 

Classic  

• 129 participants in the 2.5km 

Challenge  

• 60 participants in the Honeysuckle 

Beach Run  

• 60 participants in the Nipper/Novice 

Swim  

The event continues to enjoy great support 

from sponsors, including:  

• Mornington Prime Cuts,  

• Balnarring and District Community 

Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank  

• Vantage Fuels  

• Burnley Brewing  

• Paton Estate Agents Ltd  
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• Point Leo Foreshore Committee 

• Millar Merrigan Land Development 

Consultants 

• Golden Breed 

• South East Water 

Each year we seem to get even better at 

hosting the event, with the beach set up in 

record time, plenty of compliments from 

competitors and a great community vibe.  

A big thank you to all who helped out, from 

those sorting out entries and T-shirts, the 

setup/pack-up crew, first aid team, ceremony 

team, food organisers, water safety personnel, 

pre-entry bag packers, t-shirt designer, those 

who manned the front gate and miscellaneous 

role-fillers. It was terrific to see so many 

people turn up and lend a hand in whatever 

capacity they could.  

The 2020 Boxing Day Swim Classic promises 

to be even bigger and better, with the 

subcommittee presently working hard to 

secure funding for the event.  

If you are interested in sponsoring the Swim 

Classic or have any suggestions or 

recommendations, please contact Michael 

Treadwell - mick.treadwell@gmail.com 

MICHAEL TREADWELL 

Swim Classic Co-ordinator 

Point Leo SLSC Bobbas 

Over the past twelve months the Bobbas have 

continued as a vehicle for past members of 

Point Leo SLSC to stay in touch with each 

other, particularly on club matters and to 

support the Club where and when appropriate. 

At last count the Bobbas had 80 odd on the 

mailing list – many interstate, one overseas, 

but all of us keen to see the Club continue as a 

strength in the great Surf Life Saving 

movement. 

Sadly, this year the Bobbas have lost three 

long term members – John Forsyth, Bill Austin 

and Bob Harper and a great friend in Charles 

Lyne.  

John Forsyth (right) or 

“Fizzle” was a member 

of the Club’s first Bronze 

Squad in November 

1955 and in 1956 he 

placed third in the Junior 

Belt at the Aussies at 

Torquay. Fizzle won 

numerous medals at 

State titles, represented 

Victoria on four 

occasions, and was 

awarded the prestigious 

John Wishart Memorial Medal in 1961. He was 

an Honorary Life Member of the Club. 

Bill Austin gained his Bronze in January 1958, 

competed for the Club in R&R and in beach 

events and excelled with patrol duties on the 

beach at Point Leo.  

Bob Harper or “Harps” passed his Bronze 

exam in March 1957 and was a proud member 

of the first serious Senior Boat Crew under 

Bruce Bowman that won the South Australian 

Senior Boat title in 1960. Bob, a builder by 

profession, was very much involved in the 

rebuilding of the Leo clubhouse after the fire in 

1974. 

Charles Lyne, a past President of Torquay 

SLSC, a past President of Life Saving Victoria 

and a great supporter and friend of the Bobbas 

also passed away and will be missed at our 

Bobba functions. Charles was a Life Member 

of both bodies.  

On the positive side of things two past 

members, Roger “Todge” Thompson and 

Graham Beveridge came out of the woodwork 

and joined the Bobbas ranks. 

mailto:mick.treadwell@gmail.com
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The Bobbas had two lunches at Kooyong LTC 

that were very well attended. We had to 

postpone our traditional Bobbas and Partners 

lunch at the clubhouse because of the COVID-

19 situation. Hopefully this lunch will be able to 

take place over the next twelve months. 

As in previous seasons the Bobbas assisted 

with set up, car and gear trailer parking, BBQ 

and cleaning up duties at the Boxing Day 

Swim Classic and at a Junior carnival in 

February 2020. They also organized dinner for 

the attendees at the annual Bronze Camp in 

December 2019. Wives and partners of 

Bobbas were also very much involved. 

Bobbas have continued to and will continue in 

the future to donate generously to the Point 

Leo SLSC and to the Gary Tierney 

Foundation. Of course, all Bobbas continue to 

get older and that will not change but all of us 

will continue to support the Club. We have 

complete confidence in the management of the 

Club, and we know that everything is in 

capable hands. 

JOHN HORWOOD 

Bobbas Convenor 

Sponsors 

 

Point Leo SLSC had strong support from many 

businesses over the last season and we take 

this opportunity to thank our major sponsors 

for their continuing contribution to the financial 

operation of the Club. 

Vantage Fuel and Bowser Bean Café  

Point Leo SLSC would like to acknowledge the 

continuous support of the Club by Vantage 

Fuel and Bowser Bean Café, including the 

recent and very generous donation towards 

the purchase of a Ford Transit van for club 

use. This van was much needed and highly 

appreciated. Louise, Haydn and Mark Tierney 

have been committed to our club for many 

seasons, both as members and sponsors and 

we greatly value and appreciate the 

contribution that the family has made.  

 

 

 

 

 

Balnarring and District Community Bank 

Branch of the Bendigo Bank 

Point Leo SLSC greatly appreciates the 

generous support of The Balnarring and 

District Community Bank Branch of the 

Bendigo Bank (Community Bank) to our club 

and our programs. We have developed a 

strong partnership with the Community Bank 

and value our enduring relationship. This 

season The Balnarring and District Community 

Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank have 

contributed to our club across numerous 

platforms including: 

• Boxing Day Swim Classic 

• Young Leader Award 

• School Surf Aware Program 

Point Leo SLSC sincerely thanks the 

Community Bank and looks forward to further 

collaboration and strengthening of our 

relationship in the upcoming season. 
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Mornington Prime Cuts and O’Connor Beef 

Mornington Prime Cuts, once again, has kindly 

donated its gourmet sausages to the JSLP for 

the Nipper barbeque. The barbeque is a major 

fundraiser for the Point Leo SLSC, so we 

thank Tim O’Connor for his ongoing generosity 

and support of the JSLP and other events 

such as the Point Leo Estate Barbeque, the 

Bronze Camp, the Point Leo Junior Carnival 

and of course the Swim Classic.  

 

Point Leo SLSC also acknowledge the 

sponsors and supporters of the following 

events: 

Point Leo Swim Classic 

This great swim on Boxing Day continues with 

the support of its major sponsors, Paton Estate 

Agents Pty Ltd and The Balnarring and District 

Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank. 

Paton Estate Agents has supported the 

Honeysuckle Run held during the Swim 

Classic for many years and we highly value 

the commitment of Blane Paton to this event. 

We also acknowledge and appreciate the 

support of the following businesses to the 

Point Leo Swim Classic:  

• The Point Leo Foreshore Committee  

• Burnley Brewing  

• Golden Breed  

• Vantage Fuel  

• South East Water  

• Mornington Prime Cuts 

• Millar Merrigan Land Development 

Consultants 

Muso Night 

The Muso Night is a fundraiser specifically for 

the Point Leo SLSC Competition Team. Many 

local businesses support the event by 

providing donations to the music, drink and 

prizes for the auction. We extend our 

appreciation and thanks to all these 

businesses and particularly to Cygnett and the 

Tim Swann family for their overwhelming 

generosity. 

We are sincerely grateful for the 

contribution of all Point Leo SLSC 

sponsors and encourage club members to 

support these businesses in 

acknowledgement of their support. 

Julia O’Shaughnessy 

Sponsorship Co-ordinator 

Sponsors 

Vantage Fuels / Bowser Bean 

Mornington Prime Cuts 

Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo Bank 

Paton Estate Agents Ltd 

Supporters and Donors 

Tim Swann  Swann Family Foundation  Swann Communications 

Tedesca  Garnaut Private Wealth   Pt Leo Estate 

The Bond Store  Point Leo Foreshore   Nautical Marine 

Quadlock  Jon and Michele Ford   McDonalds Rosebud 

Torello Farm  Asha Cook    Red Hill Trading Co 

Red Hill Collective Canowindra Massage   Etch Jewellery Design 

Red Hill Hair Studio Arthur’s Seat Eagle Chairlift  The Enchanted Adventure Garden 

Peninsula Hot Springs Burnley Brewing   Bluegum  

Kingfield Galvanising Millar Merrigan Land Development Consultants 
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Gary Tierney Foundation Donors 

Louise Tierney  Alister Forsyth  Alan Warby  John Horwood 

David Gibb  Brickwork Restoration 

Future Project Donors 

Louise Tierney  Alan Warby  Brian Horwood  Tamara Brawn 

Angus Melbourne Andrew Barnes  John Horwood  Andrew Ford 

Luke and Amber Skehan   Merrigan Family Trust 

Surf Boat 100 Club Donors 

Sam Hunt  Mark McDermott Scott Murray  Andrew Gibson 

Tamara Brawn  Chris Oldham  Alf Treadwell  Steve Anstee 

Richard Batchelor Sayonarra Pty Ltd Ron Murray  David Gearing 

Robert Harper  John Horwood  Millar Merrigan  Geoff James 

Andrew Cromb  Ed Treadwell  Kim Williams  David Spiteri 

Peter Stirling  Scott Travers  Ron Noonan  Brett Lehmann 

Richard Clancy  Kelvin Anderson John Scambler  Stacey Lethlean 

Brendan Riseley Louise Tierney  Mick Treadwell  Andrew Barnes  

Sandra Barnes  Bridget Barnes  Ingrid Barnes  Garry McKellar 

Ant Davis  Grahame Barber Luke Carey  Peter Quinn 

Adam Purdie  Ian Douglas  Max Jeffrey  Christine Murray 

Warren Johnstone Beyond Insurance Group   Absolute Surveying P/L 

Ed Treadwell Electrical  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Bronze Camp 2019 
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Recognition & Statistics 

 

President’s Awards 
 

 

Dick Catterick Award – (Best Club Member) – Sarah-Jo Mason 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding all-round contribution during the 

season. Presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the Clubhouse caretaker/supervisor 

in the 1970s and 1980s. 

Sarah-Jo (SJ) has been a great contributor to the Nipper program for the last 13 seasons and has 

now seen her three children all graduate through the program to be qualified lifesavers. For the past 

two seasons SJ has been the Nipper Coordinator and has done a fantastic job in leading this very 

important area of club activities. In the last season SJ has not only overseen a hugely successful 

program for a record number of Nippers, she has also been instrumental in delivering a new program 

for our U14s and the Pink Patrol initiative. SJ’s ‘can do’ spirit has also seen her contribute well at the 

LSV level as the Club Delegate to the Membership and Leadership Development Council. 

 

President’s Award (Senior) – Michael Treadwell 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding contribution to the Point Leo SLSC 

and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive 

performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct. 

Michael has been a constant contributor to the Club in many ways and was recently inducted as a Life 

Member. Among his many achievements he has: 

• held a key committee role in coordinating grant opportunities with great success 

• led the team organising the Boxing Day swim for many years and this year saw record 

numbers and again great success 

• made a key contribution to the building sub-committee specifically through an engagement 

initiative with state and local government 

• continued to be involved in social events   

• completed his patrols and has an array of lifesaving skills and awards.  

Michael is an outstanding contributor to the Club and a worthy recipient of this year’s President’s 

Award (Senior).  

 

President’s Award (Junior) – Nathaniel (Nat) Clarke  
This award recognises a Junior member (U15 – U19) who has made an outstanding contribution to the 

Point Leo SLSC and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria 

activities, competitive performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanour. 

Nat has been a great role model for our young members through his commitment to training and 

safety as a team leader in the Nipper Water Safety and Surf Education areas and has been a 

wonderful contributor to the Club as a patroller and competitor. He is a determined and accomplished 

competitor and valued member of the Competition Team. He has shown leadership, character and 

community spirit through his club involvement and is a very worthy recipient of the President’s Award 

(Junior) this season. 
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Award Recipients 

Club Captain’s Award – Ella Laussen 
This award recognises a member whose contribution to club operations demonstrably enhances the 

development of lifesaving at the Point Leo SLSC or whose commitment to patrol operations, training 

and education, youth and leadership development or the Junior Lifesaving Program has excelled. 

Please congratulate our 2020 Club Captain award winner, Ella Laussen. Ella has a fantastic patrol 

record, often attending patrols beyond her own. She belongs to a small number of club members that 

have most operational awards, yet don’t guard – however unlike many lifeguards, she has accrued 

her Training Officer award too. She contributes significantly to the Nipper program, spearheading the 

surf education component. She was not only a senior Bronze Camp leader; she was instrumental in 

running the SRC camp this season. Personally, it is her spark for the social advancement of the Club 

that has made me most proud. Her role, along with many other amazing members, in delivering the 

Pink Patrol and representing Point Leo SLSC at the MidSumma Pride march left no doubt in my mind, 

that she will be continue to shape the Club to be an even better place for many years to come. 

 

Outstanding Achievement – Janet (Jan) Williams, ‘Long John’ and Diane Silver 
This award recognises outstanding achievement(s) or contributions in any sector of club activity during 

the current season.  

About 3 or 4 years ago Jan Williams started a mission to develop a Junior March Past team that 

would see the Club proudly represented at the Junior State Titles. Long John and Diane Silver came 

on board and the three Club stalwarts started a training program that has seen the Club well 

represented, providing a great team experience for our young members in the competition team which 

culminated this season with a podium finish at the State Titles!  

It was such a thrill to hear the countdown of results over the loudspeaker at Warrnambool and to 

come in second place amongst so many great teams was a truly outstanding result and worthy of the 

Outstanding Achievement of the Year Award. 

 

Patroller of the Year (Geoff Waters Perpetual Trophy) – Nicholas (Nick) Woods 
The Patroller of the Year award is presented each year in recognition of excellence and commitment to 

patrolling.  

Nick Woods has been Patrol Captain of the famous Woodchucks patrol for some seasons now and 

has grown and strengthened this almighty patrol alongside Chuck Warner. Nick is outgoing in his 

mindset and determination to boost member retention. Nick, along with his fellow Woodchucks, was 

always putting on a barbie at patrol to attract members and strengthen friendships. Nick is always 

around the Club lending a hand where it is needed. He is very deserving of this award and has shown 

great initiative and leadership during this interesting season. 

 

Junior Patroller of the Year – Jasper Romari 
The Junior Patroller of the Year award is presented to a Junior member (U15 - U19) each year in 

recognition of excellence and commitment to patrolling.  

Jasper Romari has shown great initiative on and off the beach. He was always down on the beach 

and always assisting the patrol in every way he could. This season Jasper was very eager to learn 

more skills and stepped up into the Vice Patrol Captain position on Sam’s patrol and did an amazing 

job in his first season in the role.  
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Team of the Year – The Persuaders Surf Boat Crew 

This award recognises outstanding achievement(s) by a team in respect to lifesaving competition 

performances during the current season.  

After some great rowing at VSRL and LSV carnivals in January the Persuaders crew of Grahame 

Barber, David Spiteri, Thomas Skidmore, Josh Nalder and sweep Mark (Macca) McDermott were 

selected to represent Victoria as the Reserve Grade Team to compete at the ASRL Open 

Championships in Mollymook in February 2020. Unfortunately, due to dangerous surf conditions the 

event was cancelled, however their selection as the State Team representatives earned them this 

award. 

 

 

NOTE: The remainder of the Surf Sports awards were not presented this year as many carnivals were 

not completed due to dangerous surf conditions and the State and Nationals Championships were 

cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

 

Award Recipients 

Dick Catterick Award (Best Club Member) Sarah-Jo Mason 

Point Leo SLSC Senior President's Award Michael Treadwell 

Point Leo SLSC Junior President's Award Nathaniel Clarke 

Club Captain’s Award Ella Laussen 

Outstanding Achievement of the Year 
Janet Williams, John Silver and Diane 
Silver 

Team of the Year 

The Persuaders Surf Boat Crew: 
Grahame Barber, Josh Nalder, Tom 
Skidmore, David Spiteri, sweep Mark 
(Macca) McDermott 

 

Vigilance and Service Awards 

Senior Patroller of the Year Nicholas Woods 

Junior Patroller of the Year Jasper Romari 

Patrol Hours Bronze Award 

Travis Cargill 

Rhys Cole 

Andrew Gibson 

Ella Laussen 

Jasper Romari 

Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite 

Andrew Welsh 

Nicholas Woods 
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Junior Awards 

Jill McKellar Junior of the Year Henry Laussen 

Nipper Parent of the Year Steven Northcote 

Nipper Male Athlete of the Year Isaac Taylor 

Nipper Female Athlete of the Year Sienna Dawes 

Nipper Competitor Award Matthew Callaghan 

Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Female Ruby Johnstone 

Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Male Sonny Woods 

Water Safety Awards 

Madison Clark 

Freddie Langdon 

Eliott Lebeau 

Jonathan Lew 

Corey Lionnet 

 

Junior Club Champions 

Age Group Placings 

Under 7 Boys - Blue 

1st – Jock Walter 

2nd – Finn Reith 

3rd – Lenny Miratana 

Age Manager’s Award – NA 

Under 7 Boys - Orange 

1st – Ted Jack 

2nd – George Cooper 

3rd – Lewis Kitto 

Age Manager’s Award – Sam Hyslop 

Under 7 Girls 

1st – Clara Hunt 

2nd – Stella Hutton 

3rd – Lulu Gasparini 

Age Manager’s Award – Harriet Talbot 

Under 8 Boys  

1st – Tom Kogler 

2nd – Josh Hildebrand 

3rd – Daniel Horne 

Age Manager’s Award – Tom Kyriacou 

Under 8 Girls 

1st – Matilda Cleven 

2nd – Poppy Ward 

3rd – Esther Fulton 

Age Manager’s Award – Eve Madder 

Under 9 Boys 

1st – Jack De Fazio 

2nd – Tom Hunt 

3rd – Henry Reith 

Age Manager’s Award – William Day 

Under 9 Girls 

1st – Poppy Waters 

2nd – Milla Skehan 

3rd – Laila Spatt 

Age Manager’s Award – Annabelle Gurvitch 

Under 10 Boys 

1st – Charlie Cullen 

2nd – Arki Phillips 

3rd – Max Dixon 

Age Manager’s Award – Archie Westaway 

Under 10 Girls 

1st – Milla Clarke 

2nd – Charlotte Pound 

3rd – Lainey Cleven 

Age Manager’s Award – Sibella Brancatisano 
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Junior Club Champions (continued) 

Age Group Placings 

Under 11 Boys 

1st – Max Alekna 

2nd – Oscar Skehan 

3rd – Luca Phillips 

Age Manager’s Award – Daniel Singh 

Under 11 Girls 

1st – Claudia Kogler 

2nd – Sophie Wilkinson 

3rd – Zoe Salaoutis 

Age Manager’s Award – Estelle Lebeau 

Under 12 Boys 

1st – Charlie Farrell 

2nd – Orlando Clarke 

3rd – Gus Johnstone 

Age Manager’s Award - Sam Doak 

Under 12 Girls 

1st – Anouk Clarke 

2nd – Grace Lillywhite 

3rd – Nina Pound 

Age Manager’s Award - Zoe Watt 

Under 13 Boys 

1st – Fred Handley 

2nd – Joe Collingwood 

3rd – Alex Northcote 

Age Manager’s Award – Maxwell Findlay 

Under 13 Girls 

1st – Harriet Kogler 

2nd – Evie Ford 

3rd – Lily Douglas 

Age Manager’s Award - Lucia Turnbull 

Under 14 Boys 

1st – Matthew Callaghan 

2nd – Henry Laussen 

3rd – Parker Williams 

Age Manager’s Award - Isaac Taylor 

Under 14 Girls 

1st – Ruby Johnstone 

2nd – Sienna Dawes 

3rd – Riley Mair 

Age Manager’s Award - Cassie Merrigan and Sienna Dawes 

 

Junior State Title Results 

Age Group Place/Event/ Names 

U9 Boys GOLD - Surf Race – Jack DeFazio 

U10 Girls 

GOLD - Wade Relay – Milla Clark, Tinashe Corriero, Jasmine Northcote, 

Charlotte Pound  

SILVER - Surf Teams – Milla Clark, Tinashe Corriero, Elina Kyriacou, Grace 

Oldham 

U11 Girls 
SILVER - Beach Relay – Ruby Douglas, Claudia Kogler, Zoe Salaoutis, Mia 

Carne 

U11 Boys 

GOLD - Surf Race – Oscar Skehan 

GOLD - Beach Run – Max Alekna 

GOLD - Board Race – Max Alekna 

BRONZE - Iron – Oscar Skehan 

GOLD - Surf Teams – Freddie Ward, Luca Phillips, Oscar Skehan, Max Alekna 

BRONZE - Aqua Cameron – Oscar Skehan, Max Alekna, Wilbur Waters, Hugh 

Dawes 

U12 Girls 
GOLD - Board Race – Anouk Clarke 

BRONZE -Iron – Anouk Clarke 

U12 Boys SILVER - Beach Run – Orlando Clark 

  



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 48  

Junior State Title Results (continued) 

Age Group Place/Event/ Names 

U13 Girls BRONZE - Beach Relay – Lily Douglas, Harriet Kogler, Emma May-Konning, 

Milla Ogilvie 

U13 Boys 

GOLD - Beach Flags – Alex Northcote 

SILVER - Beach Sprint – Ben Hulyer 

SILVER - Beach Relay – Joe Collingwood, Hamish Metcalf, Alex Northcote, Ben 

Hulyer 

BRONZE - Aqua Cameron – Fred Handley, Maxwell Findlay, Alex Northcote, 

Joe Collingwood 

March Past 

SILVER - March Past – Evelyn Ford, Fenella Collins, Milla Clark, Lily Douglas, 

Zoe Watt, Zoe Alekna, Aine Curtis, Harriet Kogler, Murphy Clark, Layla Romari, 

Emma May-Konning, Emma Williams 

 

LSV Junior Pool Lifesaving Championships 2019 

Name Age Event Place 

Skehan, Oscar Under 10 50m Obstacle Race Gold 

Skehan, Oscar Under 10 Line Throw Gold 

Skehan, Oscar Under 10 50m Manikin Carry Fins Gold 

Skehan, Oscar Under 10 50m Tow/Clip Fins Silver 

Skehan, Oscar Under 10 25m Manikin Carry Gold 

Clark, Milla Under 9 50m Obstacle Race Silver 

Clark, Milla Under 9 50 Manikin Carry Fins Bronze 

Clark, Milla Under 9 50m Tow/Clip Fins Bronze 

De Fazio, Jack Under 8  25m Obstacle Race Gold 

De Fazio, Jack Under 8 Line Throw Silver 

De Fazio, Jack Under 8 25m Kickboard Carry Gold 

De Fazio, Jack Under 8 25m Tube Tow – Fins Gold 

De Fazio, Jack Under 8 25m Free Race - Fins Gold 

Skehan, Milla Under 8 25m Kickboard Carry Silver 

Skehan, Milla Under 8 25m Tube Tow - Fins Silver 

Skehan, Milla Under 8 25m Free Race - Fins Gold 

 

LSV Junior State Awards 

Ben Hulyer - U13 boys - Beach Athlete of the Year. 

Matthew Callaghan – U14 boys – Mike Martin Champion Junior Lifesaver Award 

 

State Representatives 

Caitlin Robinson (Pool) 

The Persuaders Surf Boat Crew – Thomas Skidmore, Josh Nalder, David Spiteri, Grahame Barber 

and Mark (Macca) McDermott (Sweep). 
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Masters Victorian Championships Results 

Name Age Event Place 

Prospectors – Brett O’Loughlin (Sweep), David 

Spiteri, Bryon Marshall, Dylan Cresswell, Ant 

Williams 

160+  Surf Boat Race Silver 

Nathan Millar 35-39 Surf Race Bronze 

Simon Merrigan and Nicholas Clarke 45-54 Men’s Belt & Reel Silver 

Luke Skehan 40-44 Board Race Bronze 

Luke Skehan 40-44 Surf Race Bronze 

Nicholas Clarke 45-49 Board Race Gold 

Jon Ford 50-54 Board Race Bronze 

Jon Ford 50-54 Ironman Gold 

Marc Aliotti 60-64 Beach Flags Gold 

Marc Aliotti 60-64 Beach Sprint Bronze 

Andrew Gibson 65-69 Beach Flags Bronze 

Andrew Gibson 64-69 Beach Sprint Bronze 

Dianne Summers, Gabrielle McMeeken, Vicki 

Hood and Kim Aliotti 
200+ Women’s Beach Relay Gold 

Dianne Summers 50-54 Beach Flags Bronze 

 

Victorian Endurance Championships 2019 

Name Age Event Place 

Anouk Clarke Under 12 2km Board Gold 

Fred Handley Under 13 2km Board Bronze 

Nathaniel Clarke Under 17 6km Ski Silver 

Joshua Doherty Open 4km Board Gold 

Joshua Doherty Open 4km Run Silver 

Joshua Doherty Open 2km Swim Gold 

 

RLSSA Australian Pool Lifesaving Championships 2020 

Name Age Event Place 

Caitlin Robinson Vic State Team Open CPR Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Vic State Team Open Line Throw Bronze 

Caitlin Robinson Vic State Team Open 4 x 50 Lifesaver Relay Bronze 

 

LSV Senior Pool Lifesaving Championships 2019 

Name Age Event Place 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 Line Throw Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 200m Obstacles Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 100m Manikin Carry Fins Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 200m Super Lifesaver Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 100m Manikin Tow Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 50m Man Carry Gold 

Caitlin Robinson Under 19 100 Rescue Medley Gold 
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Point Leo Swim Classic Results 
 Male Female 

2km Beach Run 

8-11 Orlando Clark Jossie Kerr 

12-15 Oscar Hoskins Ruby Schultz 

16-18 Edward Sweeney Charlotte Hoskins 

19+ Tom McFarlane Ciara Losty 

Balnarring & District Community Bank 2.5 km Challenge 

1 Matt Gilling Rebecca Henderson 

2 Luke Matthews Sienna Stone 

3 Mark Stone Kate Brooks 

1.2km Swim Classic 

12-15 Nicholas Lew Sienna Stone 

16-18 Luke Matthews Isabella Terry 

19-29 Matt Gilling Kate Brooks 

30-39 Haydn Tierney Kelly Stubbins 

40-49 Nigel Fanning Danielle Tulloch 

50-59 Mark Stone Helen Whitford 

60-69 Frank Christian Sue Boekel 

70+ Trevor Armstrong Mirjana Prather 

 

Lifesaving Awards 

Attained in Season 2019/2020 

5 Year National Patrol Service 
Award 

Alekna, Darius  

Cargill, Zali  

Cassell-Ashton, Charli  

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia  

Irwin, Myles  

Paton, James  

Swaney, Ella  

Warner, Edward (Chuck)  

Warner, Sam  

Welsh, Andrew  

Wynn-Pope, Hamish  

Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques 

Barnes, Bridget  

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 

Clark, Madison  

Clarke, Nathaniel (Nat)  

Gibson, Andrew  

Laussen, Ella  

Laussen, William (Will)  

Whitehouse, Liam  

 

Age Manger - Online Theory 

Akkerman, Georgina 

Clark, Rowan 

Clarke, Sharyn 

Cooper, Rob 

Date, James 

Dodds, Nicholas 

Hassett, Amanda 

Hunt, Georgina (Georgie) 

Johnson, Kailani 

Kogler, Daniel 

Laussen, Stephen (Steve) 

Leach, Fiona 

Martyn, Simon 

Marziano, Adrian 

Mason, Sarah-Jo 

Mcallister, Craig 

McGuirk, Brett 

McKellar, Dianna 

McPherson, Melissa 

Melbourne, Jennifer 

Mitchell, William (Bill) 

Murray, Tarena 

Northcote, Hayley 

Noxon, Justin 

Ogilvie, Nicholas (Nick) 

Poore, Richard 

Pound, Anton 

Ralph, Jacqueline (Jacqui) 

Reith, Simon 

Renison, Krysha 

Singh, Kasha 

Ward, Marcus 

Age Manager 

Dodds, Nicholas 

Hassett, Amanda 

Laussen, Stephen (Steve) 

Leach, Fiona 

Martyn, Simon 

McGuirk, Brett 

McKellar, Dianna 

McPherson, Melissa 

Mitchell, William (Bill) 

Northcote, Hayley 

Poore, Richard 

Pound, Anton 
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Renison, Krysha 

Singh, Kasha 

Ward, Marcus 

Age Managers Course 
Presenters Award  

Kogler, Daniel  

Mason, Sarah-Jo  

Assessor First Aid 

Lipszyc, Adam  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Assessor Resuscitation 

Lipszyc, Adam  

McLeod, Darren  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Assessor Surf Rescue 
Certificate 

Gibson, Andrew  

Lipszyc, Adam  

McLeod, Darren  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Bronze Medallion 

Anderson, Evie  

Aumont, Declan  

Austin, Cameron  

Ball, Jack  

Beever, Kate  

Bennett, Hugo  

Callaghan, Andrew  

Campbell, Lucy  

Collingwood, Heidi  

Corriero, Angela  

Cullen, Bronte  

Cunningham, Olivia  

Davey, Tom  

Dawes, Lilly  

Farrell, Timothy (Tim)  

Harper, Jack  

Harper, Louisa  

Hipwell, Bridie  

Hoskins, Oscar  

Hurley, Jack  

Jenkins, Rose  

Johnson, Kailani  

Kyriacou, Mikayla  

Langdon, Freddie  

Larobina, Olivia  

Laussen, Stephen (Steve)  

Leeton Watts, George  

Lillywhite, Charlotte  

Linna, Kiia  

Macgowan, Melissa  

Mannock, Toby  

McKenzie, Euan  

McLeish, Skye  

Melbourne, Amelie  

Mitchell, William (Bill)  

Morrissy, Lucinda (Lucy)  

Morton, James  

Nikakis, Chloe  

Perrignon, Isabella (Issy)  

Phillips, Justin  

Puleio, Lucia  

Pullar, Dean  

Reynolds, Ben (Benny)  

Richardson, Jessica  

Sandow, Pippa  

Scoffern, Tulle  

Talbot, Chloe  

Westaway, Michael  

Whitehouse, Liam  

Whiteoak, Christine  

Young, David  

Facilitator Resuscitation 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

First Aid  

Ashby, Vanessa  

Austin, Cameron  

Austin, Isabella  

Bradshaw, Jessica  

Cherny, Tanya  

Clark, Kylie  

Collingwood, Heidi  

Davey, Tom  

Dawes, Lilly  

Gibson, Andrew  

Hoskins, Oscar  

Hurley, Jack  

Jenkins, Rose  

Kogler, Amelia  

Langdon, Freddie  

Larobina, Olivia  

Leach, Fiona  

Lillywhite, Charlotte  

Lipszyc, Romy  

McKenzie, Euan  

McLeish, Skye  

Millar, Nathan  

Morton, James  

Morton, Matthew  

Romari, Jason 

Romari, Jasper  

Scoffern, Tulle  

Warner, Bella  

Warner, Edward (Chuck)  

Woods, Nicholas (nick)  

Inclusive Beaches Online  

Feehan, David  

IRB Crew Certificate 

Austin, Cameron  

Gluskie, Isabella (Bella)  

Handley, Grace  

Langdon, Freddie  

Oldham, Christopher (Chris)  

Puleio, Lucia  

Romari, Jason 

Romari, Jasper  

Scoffern, Tulle  

Pain Management Certificate  

Richardson, Samuel  

Rescue Water Craft Operator 
Certificate 

Paton, James 

Warner, Sam 

Safeguarding Children and 
Young People Awareness 

Akkerman, Georgina  

Barnes, Andrew  

Bonfield, Siobain  

Bradshaw, Jessica  

Cargill, Zali  

Cassell, Iris  

Clark, Rowan  

Clarke, Warren  

Date, James  

Dodds, Nicholas  

Gallagher, John  

Hassett, Amanda  

Johnson, Kailani  

Jones, Morgan  
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Kogler, Daniel 

Laussen, Ella  

Laussen, Stephen (Steve)  

Leach, Fiona  

Martyn, Simon  

Marziano, Adrian  

Mason, Sarah-Jo  

McDermott, Mark  

McGuirk, Brett  

McKellar, Dianna  

McPherson, Melissa  

Melbourne, Jennifer  

Merrigan, Simon  

Mitchell, William (Bill)  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Northcote, Hayley  

O'Shaughnessy, Julia 

Paton, Blane  

Paton, James  

Pound, Anton  

Pullar, Dean  

Ralph, Jacqueline (Jacqui)  

Reith, Simon  

Renison, Krysha  

Richardson, Samuel  

Treadwell, Luke  

Treadwell, Michael  

Ward, Marcus  

Woods, Nicholas (nick)  

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 1  

Williams, Kim  

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 2  

Williams, Kim  

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management 

Barnes, Bridget  

Laussen, Ella  

Warner, Edward (Chuck)  

Warner, Sam  

Silver Medallion IRB Drivers 

Appleton, Bryce  

Edmonds, Kipling  

Oldham, Christopher (Chris) 

Richardson, Nicholas  

SRR Award  

Richardson, Samuel  

 

SS - ASADA level 1 Anti 
doping  

McDonald, Clayton  

O'Loughlin, Brett  

SS - ASADA Level 2 Anti 
Doping  

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - ASC Officiating General 
Principles 

Alekna, Nicola (Nikki) 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

De Fazio, Tamie  

Douglas, Jody  

Douglas, Naomi  

Enever, Matthew (Matt)  

Farrell, Timothy (Tim)  

Lightfoot, Jessica  

Magree, Margot  

Martyn, Simon  

Porter, Virginia  

Pound, Jane  

Renison, Krysha  

SS - Coach Assessor 

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Coach Mentor 

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Core Official  

Alekna, Nicola (Nikki) 

De Fazio, Tamie 

Devine, Roger 

Douglas, Jody 

Douglas, Naomi 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

Lightfoot, Jessica 

Magree, Margot 

Martyn, Simon 

May-Konning, Zoe 

Porter, Virginia 

Pound, Jane 

Renison, Krysha 

SS - Core Official online 
Theory Modules 

Alekna, Nicola (Nikki) 

Corriero, Angela 

De Fazio, Tamie 

Devine, Roger 

Douglas, Jody 

Douglas, Naomi 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

Heffernan, Tamara 

Lightfoot, Jessica 

Magree, Margot 

Martyn, Simon 

Porter, Virginia 

Pound, Jane 

Reith, Simon 

Renison, Krysha 

SS - Development Coach 
Board  

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Development Coach Iron  

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Development Coach Ski  

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Development Coach Surf 
Boat  

O'Loughlin, Brett  

SS - Development Coach Surf 
Boat (Online Modules) 

O'Loughlin, Brett  

SS - Development Coach 
Swim  

McDonald, Clayton  

SS - Official Mentor  

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh (Tamara)  

SS - S2 Boat Sweep 
Accreditation  

O'Loughlin, Brett  

SS - S3 Boat Sweep 
Accreditation  

O'Loughlin, Brett  

SS - Technical Official Finish 
Judge/ Time Keeper/ Recorder 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Devine, Roger 

Enever, Matthew (Matt) 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

Kogler, Daniel 

SS - Technical Official 
Marshall/Check-Marshall 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Devine, Roger 

Enever, Matthew (Matt) 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

Kogler, Daniel 

SS - Technical Official Online 
Theory Modules 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Devine, Roger 
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Enever, Matthew (Matt) 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

SS - Technical Official 
Starter/Check-Starter 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Devine, Roger 

Enever, Matthew (Matt) 

Farrell, Timothy (Tim) 

Kogler, Daniel 

Surf Rescue Certificate 

Ashby, Charlotte  

Bennett, Anouk  

Bonfield, Thalia  

Brancatisano, Hugo  

Brockhurst, Jack  

Cahill, Lily  

Calder, Hugh 

Callaghan, Matthew  

Cester, Hannah  

Davey, Sienna  

Dawes, Sienna  

Doak, Max  

Drake, Helena  

Grant, Mathilda  

Henderson, Charlotte  

Hershan, Lachlan  

Hosking, Ella  

Hosking, William  

Hunt, Matilda (Tilly)  

Hyatt, Ruby  

Johnstone, Ruby  

Lally, Hamish  

Langdon, Charlie  

Laussen, Henry  

Lillywhite, Tom  

Macaulay, Charlotte  

Macpherson Smith, Charles 

Mair, India  

Mair, Riley  

McGuire, Bonnie  

Melbourne, Sophie  

Merrigan, Cassandra  

Meysztowicz, Ted  

Middendorp, Marcus  

Morton, Amelia  

Neville-Smith, Peggy  

Nikakis, Phoebe  

Price, Finn  

Pullar, Oliver (Olly)  

Ralton, Archibald (Archie)  

Said, Domenic  

Singh, Stephanie  

Talbot, James  

Taylor, Isaac  

Westaway, Charlotte  

Whiteoak, Nicholas  

Williams, Lewis  

Woods, Sonny  

Training Officer Advanced 
First Aid 

McLeod, Darren  

Training Officer Bronze 
Medallion  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Training Officer First Aid 

Lipszyc, Adam  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Nott, Andrew (Andy)  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Training Officer Resuscitation 

Lipszyc, Adam  

Lipszyc, Romy  

McLeod, Darren  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Nott, Andrew (Andy)  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

Training Officer Surf Rescue 
Certificate 

Lipszyc, Adam  

Lipszyc, Romy  

McLeod, Darren  

Morgenthaler, Brittany  

Nott, Andrew (Andy)  

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle  

 

Nipper Award Statistics 

Award Total Male Female 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 9 19 10 9 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 10 49 23 26 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 11 50 16 34 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 12 53 21 32 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 13 58 25 33 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 14 47 22 25 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 7 - Restricted 69 45 24 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 8 73 40 33 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 9 56 25 31 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 10 71 27 44 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 11 55 19 36 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 12 55 21 34 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 13 58 25 33 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 14 47 22 25 

Surf Aware One 67 38 29 
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Surf Aware Two 45 21 24 

Surf Play Two 58 37 21 

Surf Safe One 69 28 41 

Surf Safe Two 50 18 32 

Surf Smart One 41 18 23 

Surf Smart Two 52 22 30 

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 47 22 25 

Total Nipper awards achieved 1189 545 644 

 

Volunteer Hours 

Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Alekna, Darius 5 16 21 

Alekna, Nicola 7 0 7 

Aliotti, Kim 11 0 11 

Aliotti, Marc 15 0 15 

Allsopp, Abby 0 0 0 

Anderson, Evie 17 13.5 30.5 

Appleton, Bryce 30 30.5 60.5 

Ashby, Charlotte 12.33 6 18.33 

Atkins, Henry 20.5 0 20.5 

Aumont, Declan 11 2 13 

Austin, Cameron 16.5 26.5 43 

Austin, David 0 0 0 

Austin, Isabella 20 0 20 

Ball, Jack 5 20.5 25.5 

Ball, Sam 0 4 4 

Barnes, Bridget 27.75 24 51.75 

Barnes, Ingrid 0 12 12 

Bede, Frederick 2.5 10 12.5 

Beever, Kate 9.5 0 9.5 

Bennett, Anouk 0 0 0 

Bennett, Hugo 0 4 4 

Bennett, Sacha 0 0 0 

Bertalli, Joseph 7.5 2 9.5 

Bessell, Emilie 5 20.5 25.5 

Bird de la Coeur, Emile 5 0 5 

Bloom, Jessica 0 0 0 

Bogdan, Olivia 5 23 28 

Bonfield, Thalia 4 6 10 

Brancatisano, Hugo 15.5 18 33.5 

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 12 0 12 

Brockhurst, Jack 0 0 0 

Brockhurst, Lachlan 0 0 0 

Brooks, Kate 27.5 32 59.5 

Cahill, Lily 3.33 8 11.33 

Calder, Hugh 3 6 9 

Callaghan, Andrew 5 18 23 

Callaghan, Matthew 5 16 21 

Campbell, Lucy 4.5 6 10.5 

Cargill, Travis 54 2 56 

Cargill, Zali 39.25 2.5 41.75 

Cargill, Zane 4 0 4 

Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Carr, Vanessa 11.5 12 23.5 

Cassell-Ashton, Charli 42.25 15.25 57.5 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 35.25 18 53.25 

Cester, Hannah 5 8 13 

Cester, Jack 0 0 0 

Cester, Nathan 0 0 0 

Charpentier, Dan 0 14 14 

Chiswell, Ryan 11 0 11 

Christian, Frank 8 0 8 

Clark, Andrew 4.5 0 4.5 

Clark, Edward 0 0 0 

Clark, Mackenzie 0 18 18 

Clark, Madison 12 30 42 

Clark, Stephanie 21.5 6 27.5 

Clarke, Nathaniel 40.5 12 52.5 

Clarke, Nicholas 17 6.5 23.5 

Cole, Rhys 49 0 49 

Collingwood, Heidi 13.5 22 35.5 

Collingwood, Sam 0 0 0 

Condon, Emily 0 0 0 

Condon, Hugh 5 0 5 

Cullen, Bronte 7 20 27 

Cunningham, Catherine 21 0 21 

Cunningham, Olivia 12.5 7 19.5 

Curtis, Bernie 12 0 12 

Dally, Angela 11 0 11 

Davey, Emily 6.5 12 18.5 

Davey, Sienna 4.5 8 12.5 

Davey, Tom 6.5 13 19.5 

Davey, Wendy 11 4.5 15.5 

Davies, Harry 0 0 0 

Dawes, Kate 0 4.5 4.5 

Dawes, Lilly 14.75 24 38.75 

Dawes, Sienna 8 18 26 

Doak, Max 18.75 14.5 33.25 

Doherty, Ellie 35.5 16 51.5 

Doherty, Jesse 0 0 0 

Doherty, Joshua 41 0 41 

Doherty, Paul 32 0 32 

Donnelly, Frederique 0 0 0 

Donnelly, Jean-Baptiste 31.5 16 47.5 
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Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Drake, Helena 9.75 16 25.75 

Edmonds, Finley 12.5 14 26.5 

Edmonds, Kipling 13 13.5 26.5 

Egan, Alexandra 7 0 7 

Enders, Charlie 0 0 0 

Enders, Lily 0 0 0 

Enders, Miles 0 11 11 

Erez, Sam 0 2.25 2.25 

Falcon, Oliver 0 2 2 

Feehan, David 3 0 3 

Findlay, Campbell 0 4 4 

Findlay, Edward 0 0 0 

Ford, Harvey 0 6 6 

Ford, Isabella 18 0 18 

Ford, Jon 24 0 24 

Ford, Michele 18.5 0 18.5 

Ford, Nicholas 20 0 20 

Francis, India 0 0 0 

Francis, Sebastian 0 0 0 

Gallagher, John 16 0 16 

Gallagher, Mia 0 2 2 

Garner, Jack 5 0 5 

Gibson, Andrew 46 0 46 

Gluskie, Isabella 16 0 16 

Golding, Karen 4.5 16 20.5 

Grant, Mathilda 3 20.5 23.5 

Graves, Matthew 5.5 0 5.5 

Gray, Caleb 7 0 7 

Handley, Fox 6 0 6 

Handley, Grace 2 10 12 

Harper, Jack 5 4 9 

Harper, Louisa 7 11.5 18.5 

Heffernan, Tamara 13 24 37 

Hellmann, Kasper 0 0 0 

Hellmann, Mietta 5 29 34 

Henderson, Charlotte 12 0 12 

Hershan, Dylan 11.67 0 11.67 

Hershan, Lachlan 12.92 16 28.92 

Hipwell, Bridie 3 15.5 18.5 

Hipwell, Darby 0 0 0 

Hood, Vicki 21 0 21 

Hosking, Ella 9 16.75 25.75 

Hosking, Hugh 0 0 0 

Hosking, Rachel 5 2.5 7.5 

Hosking, William 9 17.25 26.25 

Hoskins, Ben 15.5 15.5 31 

Hoskins, Charlotte 37 19.5 56.5 

Hoskins, Oscar 18.75 30 48.75 

Hoskins, Richard 0 0 0 

Hough, Patrick 28 0 28 

Howell, Kate 0 0 0 

Hunt, John 0 11.75 11.75 

Hunt, Matilda 5 22 27 

Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Hunt, Samuel 0 16.5 16.5 

Hurley, Jack 13.5 18 31.5 

Hyatt, Ruby 13 26 39 

Irwin, Myles 28 0 28 

Jamieson, Cate 5 0 5 

Jeanes, John Michael 0 4 4 

Jenkins, Elizabeth 0 0 0 

Jenkins, Rose 9.5 22 31.5 

Johnson, Kailani 13 0 13 

Johnstone, Ruby 5 16 21 

Johnstone, Samuel 0 4 4 

Jones, Amy 15.5 0 15.5 

Jones, Annabelle 0 0 0 

Jones, Morgan 16 0 16 

Klein, Tim 0 12 12 

Kogler, Amelia 4 12 16 

Kogler, Daniel 7 21 28 

Kyriacou, Adam 0 13 13 

Kyriacou, Mikayla 12.67 18 30.67 

Laity, Olivia 5 19.5 24.5 

Lally, Hamish 5 14 19 

Langdon, Charlie 5 16 21 

Langdon, Freddie 11.5 32 43.5 

Langley, Tom 0 6 6 

Larobina, Olivia 18.25 20 38.25 

Laussen, Ella 46 0 46 

Laussen, Henry 5 16 21 

Laussen, Stephen 5 0 5 

Laussen, William 18.5 12 30.5 

Leach, Fiona 38 0 38 

Lebeau, Eliott 7.5 26 33.5 

Leeton Watts, George 11 4 15 

Lempriere, Henri 2 0 2 

Lethlean, Abby 23 0 23 

Lethlean, Mark 8.5 0 8.5 

Lethlean, Stacey 12.5 0 12.5 

Lew, Jonathan 5 23.5 28.5 

Lew, Nicholas 5 17.5 22.5 

Lillywhite, Charlotte 5.5 20 25.5 

Lillywhite, Tom 8.5 20 28.5 

Linna, Kiia 38.75 22 60.75 

Lionnet, Corey 24 28 52 

Lipszyc, Adam 31.5 0 31.5 

Lipszyc, Romy 20 0 20 

Lockhart-Meaney, Brenn 4.5 0 4.5 

Lockhart-Meaney, 
Cassidy 11 0 11 

Low, Sarah 4 0 4 

Macaulay, Alexandra 0 0 0 

Macaulay, Charlotte 13.83 10 23.83 

MacLaren, Angus 0 8 8 

MacLaren, Hamish 0 0 0 

Macpherson Smith, 
Charles 3.5 8 11.5 
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Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Macpherson Smith, 
Lachlan 0 0 0 

Mair, India 8.5 18 26.5 

Mair, Riley 8.5 16 24.5 

Mannock, Toby 5 14 19 

McCraith, Catherine 21 36 57 

McDonald, Clayton 11 0 11 

McFarlane, Thomas 8 0 8 

McGuire, Bonnie 3.5 10 13.5 

McKellar, James 0 0 0 

McKenzie, Alasdair 23.5 0 23.5 

McKenzie, Euan 14 15.5 29.5 

McKenzie, Hamish 32.5 0 32.5 

McKinnon, Edward 7 14 21 

McLeish, Skye 11.5 13 24.5 

McMeeken, Gabrielle 11 0 11 

McMeeken, Lily 16 4 20 

Melbourne, Amelie 0 4 4 

Melbourne, Angus 0 20.5 20.5 

Melbourne, Sophie 5 12 17 

Mengler, Troy 4 0 4 

Merrigan, Cassandra 5 20 25 

Merrigan, Simon 29.5 0 29.5 

Metcalf, Emma 5.5 0 5.5 

Metcalf, Tracey 2 0 2 

Meysztowicz, Ted 8.5 20.5 29 

Mezger, Harry 0 0 0 

Middendorp, Marcus 5.25 10 15.25 

Millar, Nathan 38 0 38 

Mitchell, William 8 4 12 

Mollenkopf, Thomas 25 0 25 

Morgenthaler, Brittany 41 5 46 

Morgenthaler, Ky 17 0 17 

Morrissy, Lucinda 4.17 17.5 21.67 

Morton, Amelia 5 16.5 21.5 

Morton, James 18.83 26 44.83 

Morton, Matthew 19.5 0 19.5 

Mourney, Bruce 6 0 6 

Murray, Scott 0 16 16 

Neville-Smith, Peggy 0 11 11 

Neville-Smith, Richie 2.5 0 2.5 

Newnham, Emily 4 22 26 

Nikakis, Chloe 0 14.5 14.5 

Nikakis, Phoebe 0 8.5 8.5 

Northcote, Giselle 19.25 23 42.25 

Northcote, Steven 31 17.5 48.5 

Nott, Andrew 33.5 0 33.5 

Noxon, Felix 0 0 0 

Noxon, Stella 0 0 0 

O'Connor, Lachlan 0 14 14 

O'Connor, Tim 0 12 12 

Ogilvie, Connor 0 0 0 

O'Hara, Andrew 20 0 20 

Oldham, Christopher 47.25 14 61.25 

Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Page, Emilie 0 0 0 

Page, Niamh 0 0 0 

Paton, James 31.5 2.5 34 

Perrignon, Isabella 0 4 4 

Poore, Tia 0 22.5 22.5 

Pound, Anton 0 27.75 27.75 

Price, Finn 5 16 21 

Puleio, Antonio 0 0 0 

Puleio, Francesca 0 0 0 

Puleio, Lucia 5.5 16.5 22 

Pullar, Charlie 0 2 2 

Pullar, Dean 0 14 14 

Pullar, Oliver 5 18 23 

Ralton, Archibald 5 14 19 

Rechner Thomas, Max 10.5 0 10.5 

Redlich, Jamie 0 24 24 

Redlich, Rory 0 0 0 

Reid, Hailey 0 0 0 

Reith, Charles 29.5 28 57.5 

Reith, Thomas 5 25.75 30.75 

Reynolds, Ben 0 0 0 

Richardson, Jacob 0 0 0 

Richardson, Jessica 0 11.5 11.5 

Richardson, Nicholas 7.5 23 30.5 

Richardson, Samuel 24.5 0 24.5 

Richter, Zachary 12 0 12 

Robinson, Caitlin 14.25 3.5 17.75 

Robinson, Lachlan 10 0 10 

Romari, Jason 46 0 46 

Romari, Jasper 46.5 16 62.5 

Rose, Geoff 0 4 4 

Ross, Greta 1 4 5 

Royal-Hebblewhite, 
Michelle 45 0 45 

Russell, David 12 0 12 

Russell, Jemima 0 0 0 

Russell, Kaitlin 13 0 13 

Russell, Mietta 6.25 0 6.25 

Said, Domenic 0 14 14 

Sawyer, Dana 13 0 13 

Schultz, Ruby 0 27.5 27.5 

Scoffern, Damon 4 0 4 

Scoffern, Skye 4 8 12 

Scoffern, Tulle 9 20 29 

Scott, Hannah 10 4 14 

Singh, Stephanie 5 14 19 

Skehan, Amber 2.5 16.75 19.25 

Skehan, Luke 6.5 37.25 43.75 

Spiteri, David 5.75 0 5.75 

Starr, Jane 22.5 0 22.5 

Steele, Raymond (Geoff) 0 0 0 

Steele, Thomas 0 0 0 

Sullivan, Harry 0 0 0 

Summers, Dianne 19 2 21 
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Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Swaney, Edward 11 2 13 

Swaney, Ella 43 0 43 

Swaney, Lachlan 15 0 15 

Tabain, Casper 4.25 18 22.25 

Tabain, Gabriella 3.5 0 3.5 

Talbot, Chloe 19.33 22.5 41.83 

Talbot, James 3.33 8 11.33 

Taylor, Isaac 12.5 20 32.5 

Thomas, Anthony 3 0 3 

Tilley, Oscar 0 15 15 

Treadwell, Luke 25 5 30 

Treadwell, Michael 41 0 41 

Twentyman, Charlotte 18.25 0 18.25 

van den Boom, Lucy 16.5 0 16.5 

Ward, Marcus 0 12 12 

Warner, Bella 26.5 28 54.5 

Warner, Edward 43 26 69 

Warner, Sam 30 0 30 

Warner, Zoe 18 27.5 45.5 

Waters, Brett 0 22.75 22.75 

Watson, Nick 4 0 4 

Name Patrol 
Water 
Safety Total 

Watson, Ruby 5 16 21 

Welsh, Andrew 56.75 0 56.75 

Welsh, Callum 0 0 0 

Welsh, Lucy 0 0 0 

Westaway, Charlotte 15 0 15 

Westaway, Michael 0 16 16 

Whitehouse, Liam 4 0 4 

Whiteoak, Christine 9 0 9 

Whiteoak, Nicholas 5 10 15 

Whiter, Chloe 3 16 19 

Wilkins, Danielle 26 0 26 

Williams, Lewis 8.5 16 24.5 

Williams, Riley 7 10 17 

Wilson, Jayden 11.33 0 11.33 

Woods, Bodhi 39 3 42 

Woods, Marley 0 0 0 

Woods, Nicholas 51 0 51 

Woods, Pippa 0 0 0 

Woods, Sonny 42.33 17 59.33 

Wynn-Pope, Hamish 18 12 30 

Young, David 0 12 12 

Membership Statistics 

Category Female Male All 

Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 270 241 511 

Cadet (13-15 years) 33 43 76 

Active (15-18 yrs) 33 30 63 

Active (18yrs and over) 73 123 196 

Reserve Active 0 4 4 

Long Service 4 7 11 

Associate 279 208 487 

Life Member 3 31 34 

General 21 11 32 

Total 716 698 1414 

 

List of members 

Life Member 

*Deceased 

Barnes, Andrew 

Batchelor, Richard 

Braithwaite, Peter 

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 

Cahill, Murray 

Caraher, Michael 

Ellis, Richard 

Ellis (SNR), Richard 

Ewert, Geoffrey 

Ford, Peter 

Gibson, Andrew 

Gibson, Peter 

Horwood, Brian 

Horwood, John 

James, Geoffrey 

Jeffrey, Maxwell 

Kidd, Edward 

Knight, Ian 

McDonald, Clayton 

McKellar, Garry 

Mollenkopf, Thomas 

Morgenthaler, Stephen 

Munro, Simone 

Murray, Ronald 

Paton, Blane 

Randall, Gary 

Roberts, Donald 

Rydberg, Garry 

Treadwell, Alfred 

Treadwell, Luke 

Treadwell, Michael 

Whillans, Peter 

Williams, Kim 

Woodhouse, Robert 

Buxton, Alastair* 

Forster, Alan* 

Forsyth, Alister* 

Kinsey, Geoff* 

McKellar, Jill* 

Taylor, Peter* 

Tierney, Gary* 

Tierney, Graham* 

Waters, Geoffrey* 

Williams, John* 

Long Service 

Bell, Simone 

Cresswell, Dylan 

Gooding, Khali 

Johnstone, Natalie 

Laurence, Dayna 
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McDermott, Mark 

Russell, David 

Tierney, Haydn 

Tierney, Mark 

Williams, Anthony 

Reserve Active 

Christian, Frank 

Condon, Hugh 

Foley, Andrew 

Rydberg, Hayden 

Cadet Member 

Austin, Cameron 

Ball, Jack 

Beaton-Wells, Clare 

Bede, Frederick 

Bennett, Hugo 

Bertalli, Joseph 

Bessell, Emilie 

Bogdan, Olivia 

Calder, Hugh 

Callaghan, Andrew 

Clark, Mackenzie 

Clark, Robert 

Collingwood, Heidi 

Cullen, Bronte 

Cunningham, Olivia 

Davey, Tom 

Dawes, Lilly 

Enders, Charlie 

Enders, Miles 

Erez, Sam 

Falcon, Oliver 

Findlay, Campbell 

Gallagher, Mia 

Handley, Fox 

Harper, Louisa 

Hellmann, Mietta 

Hipwell, Bridie 

Hoskins, Oscar 

Hurley, Jack 

Jenkins, Rose 

KLEIN, TIM 

Kogler, Amelia 

Kyriacou, Mikayla 

Laity, Olivia 

Langdon, Freddie 

Langley, Tom 

Larobina, Olivia 

Lebeau, Eliott 

Leeton Watts, George 

Lempriere, Henri 

Lew, Nicholas 

Lillywhite, Charlotte 

Lionnet, Corey 

MacLaren, Angus 

McKenzie, Euan 

McKinnon, Edward 

McLeish, Skye 

McNamara, William 

Middendorp, Marcus 

Morrissy, Lucinda 

Morton, James 

Neville-Smith, Richie 

Newnham, Emily 

Nikakis, Chloe 

Northcote, Giselle 

O'Connor, Lachlan 

Poore, Tia 

Puleio, Lucia 

Redlich, Jamie 

Reith, Thomas 

Reynolds, Ben 

Reynolds, Luke 

Richardson, Jessica 

Romari, Jasper 

Said, Domenic 

Schultz, Ruby 

Scoffern, Skye 

Scoffern, Tulle 

Tabain, Casper 

Talbot, Chloe 

Tilley, Oscar 

van den Boom, Lucy 

Warner, Zoe 

Watson, Ruby 

Whitehouse, Liam 

Whiter, Chloe 

Active Junior 

Anderson, Evie 

Aumont, Declan 

Austin, Isabella 

Ball, Sam 

Barnes, Ingrid 

Bird de la Coeur, Emile 

Blain-Bartle, Spencer 

Bloom, Jessica 

Brockhurst, Lachlan 

Campbell, Lucy 

Carr, Vanessa 

Clark, Edward 

Clark, Madison 

Clark, Stephanie 

Clarke, Nathaniel 

Davey, Emily 

Davies, Harry 

Doherty, Jesse 

Donnelly, Jean-Baptiste 

Edmonds, Kipling 

Egan, Alexandra 

Enders, Lily 

Findlay, Edward 

Ford, Harvey 

Gluskie, Isabella 

Handley, Grace 

Harper, Jack 

Hellmann, Kasper 

Hepworth, Abbey 

Hershan, Dylan 

Hipwell, Darby 

Hosking, Rachel 

Hoskins, Charlotte 

Jamieson, Cate 

Jones, Annabelle 

Laussen, William 

Lew, Jonathan 

Linna, Kiia 

Lockhart-Meaney, Cassidy 

Macaulay, Alexandra 

MacLaren, Hamish 

Macpherson Smith, Lachlan 

McKellar, James 

Melbourne, Amelie 

Metcalf, Emma 

Noxon, Stella 

Ogilvie, Connor 

Page, Niamh 

Perrignon, Isabella 

Puleio, Francesca 

Rechner Thomas, Max 

Redlich, Rory 

Reith, Charles 

Richardson, Jacob 

Russell, Mietta 

Sullivan, Harry 

Swaney, Edward 

Twentyman, Charlotte 

Warner, Bella 

Williams, Riley 

Wilson, Jayden 

Woods, Marley 

Woods, Pippa 

Active Senior 

Alekna, Darius 

Alekna, Nicola 

Aliotti, Kim 

Aliotti, Marc 

Allsopp, Abby 

Appleton, Bryce 

Atkins, Henry 

Austin, David 

Ball, Kevin 

Barber, Grahame 

Barnes, Bridget 

Beever, Kate 

Bennett, Sacha 

Bleeker, Ashley 

Bradshaw, Jessica 

Brockhurst, Tom 

Brooks, Kate 

Brown, Mitchell 

Callaghan, Penelope 

Carey, Luke 

Cargill, Travis 

Cargill, Zali 

Cargill, Zane 

Cassell-Ashton, Charli 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Cassell-Ashton, Kate 

Cester, Jack 

Cester, Nathan 

Charpentier, Dan 

Chiswell, Ryan 

Clark, Andrew 

Clark, Kylie 

Clarke, Nicholas 

Cole, Rhys 

Cunningham, Catherine 

Curtis, Bernie 

Dally, Angela 

Davey, Wendy 

Dawes, Kate 

Doherty, Ellie 

Doherty, Joshua 

Doherty, Paul 

Doherty, Tara 

Donnelly, Frederique 

Edmonds, Campbell 

Edmonds, Finley 

Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 

Feehan, David 

Ford, Andrew 

Ford, Isabella 

Ford, Jon 

Ford, Michele 

Ford, Nicholas 

Fortuyn, Jeffrey 

Francis, Adam 

Francis, Sebastian 

Gallagher, John 

Garner, Jack 

Gearing, David 

Gearing, Peter 

Gearing, Sarah 

Golding, Karen 

Graham, Emma 

Graves, Matthew 

Gray, Caleb 

Hebblewhite, Augustus 

Hebblewhite, Oscar 

Heffernan, Tamara 

Hipwell, Connor 

Hipwell, Greg 

Hood, Vicki 

Hoskins, Ben 

Hoskins, Richard 

Hough, Patrick 

Howell, Kate 

Hunt, John 

Hunt, Samuel 

Irwin, Myles 

Jeanes, John Michael 

Jenkins, Elizabeth 
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Johnson, Kailani 

Johnstone, Samuel 

Jones, Amy 

Jones, Morgan 

Kelsall, Marco 

King, Susan 

Kogler, Daniel 

Kyriacou, Adam 

Laussen, Ella 

Laussen, Stephen 

Leach, Fiona 

Lethlean, Abby 

Lethlean, Mark 

Lethlean, Stacey 

Lipszyc, Adam 

Lipszyc, Romy 

Lockhart-Meaney, Brenn 

Low, Sarah 

Lowden, Tracey 

Macgowan, Melissa 

Macpherson Smith, Georgia 

Mannock, Toby 

Marshall, Bryon 

McCraith, Catherine 

McFarlane, Thomas 

McGuire, Stephen 

McGuirk, Brett 

McKenzie, Alasdair 

McKenzie, Hamish 

McLellan, Matilda 

McLeod, Darren 

McMeeken, Gabrielle 

McMeeken, Lily 

Melbourne, Angus 

Mengler, Troy 

Merrigan, Simon 

Metcalf, Tracey 

Mezger, Harry 

Mezger, Max 

Mezger, Simon 

Millar, Nathan 

Mitchell, William 

Morgenthaler, Brittany 

Morgenthaler, Ky 

Morrissy, Kym 

Morton, Joseph 

Morton, Matthew 

Mourney, Bruce 

Murray, Scott 

Nalder, Joshua 

Northcote, Steven 

Nott, Andrew 

Noxon, Felix 

O'Connor, Tim 

O'Hara, Andrew 

Oldham, Christopher 

O'Loughlin, Brett 

Page, Emilie 

Page, Patrick 

Pascoe, Damon 

Paton, James 

Pearse, Lachlan 

Pound, Anton 

Puleio, Antonio 

Pullar, Dean 

Reid, Hailey 

Richardson, Nicholas 

Richardson, Samuel 

Richter, Zachary 

Robinson, Caitlin 

Robinson, Lachlan 

Romari, Jason 

Rose, Geoff 

Ross, Greta 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

Rush, Joanne 

Russell, Jemima 

Russell, Kaitlin 

Sawyer, Dana 

Scoffern, Damon 

Scott, Hannah 

Skehan, Amber 

Skehan, Luke 

Skidmore, Thomas 

Spiteri, David 

Starr, Heidi 

Starr, Jane 

Steele, Raymond (Geoff) 

Steele, Thomas 

Summers, Dianne 

Swaney, Ella 

Swaney, Lachlan 

Tabain, Gabriella 

Thomas, Anthony 

Thomas, Lachlan 

Walley, Benjamin 

Ward, Marcus 

Warner, Edward 

Warner, Sam 

Waters, Brett 

Watson, Nick 

Welsh, Andrew 

Welsh, Callum 

Welsh, Lucy 

Welsh, Sophie 

Westaway, Michael 

Whiteoak, Christine 

Wilkins, Danielle 

Williams, Angela 

Wilson, James 

Woods, Bodhi 

Woods, Nicholas 

Wynn-Pope, Hamish 

Young, David 

Young, Harrison 

Young, James 

Young, William 

Junior Activity (Nipper) 

Ackland, George 

Adhofer, Billy 

Ahern, Willow 

Akkerman, Samuel 

Alekna, Max 

Alekna, Zoe 

Allan, Charlie 

Allegos, Sara 

Alner, Archie 

Angelo, Chloe 

Angelo, Georgia 

Appleton, Charlie 

Ardlie, Heidi 

Arthur, Louis 

Ashby, Charlotte 

Ashby, Jessica 

Aumont, Miranda 

Austin, Sonny 

Ayer, Tom 

Bardwell, Sebastian 

Barson Boon, Arielle 

Barson Boon, Sascha 

Bennett, Anouk 

Bertalli, Arabella 

Bertalli, Scarlett 

Bickell, William 

Blake, Ella 

Blake-Reid, Mahli 

Blythe, Arthur 

Blythe, Oscar 

Bogdan, Nicholas 

Bonfield, Leni 

Bonfield, Sadie 

Bonfield, Thalia 

Boyd-Bell, Angus 

Brancatisano, Hugo 

Brancatisano, Rupert 

Brancatisano, Sibella 

Brewer Blake, Flora 

Briskin, Isadora 

Brockhurst, Jack 

Brooke, Clio 

Brooke, Thaleia 

Burton, Abby 

Burton, Cody 

Cahill, Lily 

Cahill, Max 

Callaghan, Louis 

Callaghan, Matthew 

Callaghan, Nicholas 

Campbell, Emily 

Campbell, Jessica 

Carne, Isabelle 

Carne, Mia 

Cassidy, Mary 

Cester, Hannah 

Charlton, Hamish 

Charpentier, Finnley 

Charpentier, Gilbert 

Chatfield, Lila 

Chatfield, Saskia 

Cherny, Chloe 

Cherny, Phoebe 

Clancy, Greta 

Clancy, Ruth 

Clark, Milla 

Clark, Murphy 

Clark, Orlando 

Clarke, Anouk 

Cleven, Lainey 

Cleven, Matilda 

Collings, Fraser 

Collingwood, Joe 

Collins, Alfred 

Collins, Fenella 

Collins, Zachary 

Cooke, Daniella 

Cooper, George 

Cooper, Ned 

Cooper, Oscar 

Corriero, Tinashe 

Crescia, Amelie 

Crescia, Charlize 

Crisp, Emily 

Cullen, Charlie 

Cullum, Lola 

Curtis, Aine 

Date, Teddy 

Davey, Sienna 

Davis, Iseult 

Davison, Ted 

Davison, Tessa 

Dawes, Hugh 

Dawes, Sienna 

Day, Matilda 

Day, William 

De Fazio, Charlie 

De Fazio, Jack 

De Vere, Luella 

Delaney, Alexandria 

Delaney, Finnegan 

Delaney, Georgia 

Dennis, Agnes 

Devine, Leah 

Devine, Ralph 

Dixon, Louis 

Dixon, Max 

Doak, Max 

Doak, Sam 

Dodds, Thomas 

Donnelly, Pierre-Eloi 

Dougherty, Stevie 

Douglas, Lily 

Douglas, Ruby 
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Drake, Helena 

Dunlop, Nicholas 

Eagle, Charlie 

Edmonds, Honor 

Ellery, Angus 

Elliott, Ava 

Enever, Bonnie 

Enever, Tess 

Falcon, Francesca 

Farrell, Charlie 

Farrell, Summer 

Feehan, Elizabeth 

Feehan, Isaac 

Fehring, Samuel 

Fehring, Thomas 

Fenn, Audrey 

Fenn, Lillian 

Findlay, Maxwell 

Findlay, Thomas 

Finkelstein, Zev 

Foenander, Scout 

Foenander, Willow 

Foley, Mietta 

Ford, Evelyn 

Ford, Fraser 

Fortuyn, Ava 

French, Matthew 

Fulton, Esther 

Fulton, Miriam 

Gallagher, Archie 

Gasparini, Josh 

Gasparini, Lulu 

Gay, Archie 

George, Ari 

Gibson, Beth 

Gladding, Hamish 

Golding, Stella 

Grant, Claudia 

Grant, Mathilda 

Gregory, Campbell 

Griffith, Oscar 

Groves, Jade 

Gurvitch, Annabelle 

Gurvitch, Ellie 

Hampshire, Ned 

Hamzic, Elma 

Handley, Fred 

Hansen, Baas 

Hansen, Toby 

Hansen, William 

Harrison, Sam 

Hassett, Hudson 

Hawker, Isabelle 

Haydon, Lily 

Haydon, Tom 

Heffernan, Lachlan 

Heffernan, Lucas 

Henderson, Charlotte 

Henderson, Grace 

Hershan, Eliza 

Hershan, Lachlan 

Hibbins, Daphne 

Hicks, Charles 

Hicks, Yasmin 

Higgins, Annie 

Higgins, Liam 

Higgins, Matilde 

Higgins, Zoe 

Hildebrand, Annabelle 

Hildebrand, Joshua 

Hill, Mason 

Hinks, Parker 

Hogg, Bailee 

Holt, Freddie 

Hopkinson, Maximilian 

Horne, Daniel 

Horne, Edmund 

Hosking, Ella 

Hosking, William 

Hoyle, Mia 

Hugginson, Tilly 

Hughes, Charlotte 

Hughes, William 

Hulyer, Benjamin 

Hunt, Clara 

Hunt, Grace 

Hunt, Lucy 

Hunt, Matilda 

Hunt, Thomas 

Hunter, Gracie 

Hutchinson, Henry 

Hutton, Jock 

Hutton, Stella 

Hyams, Amelia 

Hyams, Edison 

Hyatt, Alfie 

Hyatt, Ruby 

Hynes, India 

Hynes, Lottie 

Hyslop, Alfie 

Hyslop, Sam 

Jack, Henry 

Jack, Ted 

Jaksa, Campbell 

Jaksa, Monique Simone 

James, Sophia 

Jeanes, Catherine 

Jeanes, Madeleine 

Johnson, Darcie 

Johnston, Ariya 

Johnstone, Angus 

Johnstone, Mimi 

Johnstone, Ruby 

Jozis, Thomas 

Kanaan, Esme 

Kemp Smith, Anoushka 

Kendrick, Bailey 

Keogh, Hudson 

Kirby, Edward 

Kirby, Oscar 

Kitto, Lewis 

Kleverlaan, Jack 

Kleverlaan, Molly 

Knott, Zahra 

Kogler, Claudia 

Kogler, Harriet 

Kogler, Tom 

Kool, Taj 

Kozulin, Zoya 

Kyriacou, Elina 

Kyriacou, Noah 

Kyriacou, Thomas 

Laity, Oscar 

Lally, Hamish 

Lally, Max 

Lally, Sam 

Landau, Ezra 

Landau, Reuben 

Langdon, Charlie 

Langford, Jasper 

Larobina, Louisa 

Larobina, Nicholas 

Laughton, Abbey 

Laughton, Cleo 

Laussen, Henry 

Lebeau, Estelle 

Lebeau, Gaston 

Lee, Edward 

Lee, Millicent 

Lempriere, Adelaide 

Leong, Mai 

Levi, Xavier 

Levy, Chloe 

Levy, Toby 

Lew, Sophie 

Lillywhite, Grace 

Lillywhite, Tom 

Locke, Austin 

Locke, Ava 

Locke, Fergus 

Lowden, Cooper 

Macaulay, Charlotte 

Macaulay, William 

MacGowan, Edith 

MacGowan, Florence 

MacGowan, Louis 

MacGowan, Max 

Mackinnon, Claude 

Mackinnon, Harry 

Maclaren, Leo 

Macpherson Smith, Charles 

Macwhirter, Gwen 

Macwhirter, Tully 

Madder, Eve 

Mair, India 

Mair, Riley 

Mallet, Amelie 

Mannock, Cleopatra 

Mannock, Isabel 

Marks, Thomas 

Marshall, Kieran 

Martyn, Matthew 

Marziano, Gia 

Masel, Edward 

Mather, MIchell 

Maxwell, Sadie 

May-Konning, Emma 

Mcallister, Lucy 

Mcdonald, Eloise 

McGirr, George 

McGuire, Bonnie 

McGuire, Rose 

McGuirk, Liam 

McGuirk, Mitchell 

McKellar, Maximus 

McKinnon, Sophia 

Mclean, Cleo 

Mclean, Nelson 

Mclellan, Charlotte 

Mclellan, Phoebe 

McManamey, Sophie 

McMillan, Keeley 

McPherson, Maddison 

Melbourne, Sophie 

Meredith-Smith, Eliza 

Meredith-Smith, Sarah 

Merrigan, Cassandra 

Merrigan, Violet 

Meszaros, Alison 

Meszaros, Madeline 

Metcalf, Hamish 

Meysztowicz, Matty 

Meysztowicz, Ted 

Middendorp, Holly 

Miglic, Ada 

Miglic, Max 

Miglic, Zoe 

Miles, Lachlan 

Miles, Olivia 

Milosavljevic, Heidi 

Milosavljevic, Oliver 

Miratana, Lenny 

Mitchell, Betsy 

Mitchell, Rupert 

Morton, Amelia 

Morton, Estelle 

Murray, Allegra 

Murray, Hamish 

Myers, Jackson 

Ness, Vivienne Mae 

Neville-Smith, Peggy 

Newnham, Jessica 
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Nikakis, Charlotte 

Nikakis, Phoebe 

Norris, Max 

Northcote, Alexander 

Northcote, Jasmine 

Noxon, Poppy 

O'Connor, Alannah 

O'Connor, Fergus 

O'Connor, Isabel 

O'Connor, Liam 

O'Donohue, Benjamin 

O'Donohue, Harry 

O'Donohue, James 

Ogilvie, Milla 

Oke, Bennett 

Oke, Orlando 

Oldham, Grace 

Oliver, Bill 

Page, Romy 

Parris, Eden 

Parris, Isla 

Pascoe, Cassidy 

Patti, Allegra 

Patti, Evanna 

Paul, Harry 

Paynter, Amelia 

Paynter, Zara 

Penfold, Ned 

Perry, Camilla 

Perry, Jemima 

Perry, Zara 

Phillips, Arki 

Phillips, Luca 

PITT, Alexandra 

Pitt, Edward 

Podgornik, Rocco 

Poore, Chloe 

Pound, Charlotte 

Pound, Nina 

Price, Billy 

Price, Charlie 

Price, Eve 

Price, Finn 

Price, Pippa 

Pritchard, Hayley 

Puleio, Aurelia 

Pullar, Charlie 

Pullar, Mimi 

Pullar, Oliver 

Ralph, Ella 

Ralton, Archibald 

Ralton, Hazel 

Ralton, Ike 

Randles, Oliver 

Ransom Mangan, Joshua 

Rawling, Alice 

Rechner Thomas, Gustav 

Redlich, Alexander 

Redlich, Edward 

Reid, Lachie 

Reid, Zara 

Reith, Annabel 

Reith, Finn 

Reith, Henry 

Reynolds, Kate 

Richardson, Isabella 

Rogers, Ava 

Rogers, Eli 

Romari, Layla 

Rose, Alice 

Rose, Thomas 

Salaoutis, Stephanie 

Salaoutis, Zoe 

Sanchez, Felix 

Sanchez, Matteo 

Sandow, Billy 

Sandow, Fredric 

Sandow, Jessica 

Scher, Alexia 

Scher, Joah 

Schultz, Gus 

Scoffern, Misty 

Scott, Percy 

Serato, Nadia 

Simmons, Rupert 

Simpson, Torsten 

Singh, Daniel 

Singh, Stephanie 

Singh Towler, Jaya 

Skehan, Milla 

Skehan, Oscar 

Snow, Claudia 

Snow, Harriet 

Somogyi, Emma 

Somogyi, Zack 

Spatt, Archie 

Spatt, Laila 

Stewart, Connor 

Stewart, Eliza 

Strauss, Cleo 

Strauss, Nate 

Sultana, Lila 

Sverdvik, Dulcie 

Sverdvik, Fox 

Sydney, Ava 

Talbot, Harriet 

Talbot, James 

Talbot, Spencer 

Tankovich, Ella 

Tankovich, Hugo 

Tatchell, Olivia 

Tatchell, Thomas 

Taylor, Isaac 

Taylor, Maggie 

Theodore, Jesse 

Thom, Isabelle 

Thom, Jack 

Tierney, Asher 

Trembath, Thomas 

Turnbull, Jake 

Turnbull, Lucia 

Tyrrell, Jarvis 

Tyrrell, Oliver 

Unsworth, Matilda 

van den Boom, Mia 

Wallace, Daniel 

Walley, Oscar 

Walley, Tia 

Walliss, Charles 

Walliss, Oscar 

Walter, Jock 

Ward, Archie 

Ward, Freddie 

Ward, Poppy 

Waters, Poppy 

Waters, Wilbur 

Watson, Zara 

Watt, Zoe 

Westaway, Archie 

Westaway, Charlotte 

Westaway, Clancy 

Wheatley-Young, Ilka 

Wheatley-Young, Owen 

Whitehouse, Aaron 

Whiteoak, Nicholas 

Wilkinson, Sophie 

Williams, Christian 

Williams, Emma 

Williams, Jack 

Williams, Jemima 

Williams, Lewis 

Williams, Parker 

Williams, Saige 

Williams, Sonny 

Wilson, Grace 

Wisken, Kalani 

Wodak, Hazel 

Wodak, Zadie 

Wolfe, Isabella 

Wolfe, Oscar 

Woods, Sonny 

Zabojec, Alexander 

Zabojec, Lucas 

Zapone, Luca 

Zappone, Francesca 

Associate 

Adhofer, Andrew 

Ahern, Daniel 

Akkerman, Georgina 

Allegos, Aris 

Alner, Timothy 

Anderson, Kelvin 

Anderson, Susanne 

Ardlie, Amy 

Ardlie, Davin 

Arthur, Hannah 

Arthur, James 

Ashby, Vanessa 

Ashby, Warren 

Austin, Belinda 

Ayer, Scott 

Balfour, Tai 

Balmer, Belinda 

Bardwell, Elizabeth 

Bardwell, Rohan 

Barnes, Sandra 

Barry, Paul 

Barson, Rebekah 

Bastian, Amber 

Bell, Simon 

Benetti-Hille, Marika 

Bennett, Andrew 

Bertalli, Cameron 

Bertalli, Julia 

Bessell, Daniel 

Blake, Alice 

Blythe, James 

Blythe, Miffany 

Bonfield, Siobain 

Bonfield, Stephen 

Bounds, Alan 

Brancatisano, Mark 

Bridger, Eleanor 

Briskin, Jonathan 

Brooke, Jesse 

Brookes, Simone 

Buchanan, Craig 

Button, Lisa 

Cahill, Anna 

Callaghan, Mark 

Callaghan, Meahan 

Campbell, Antony 

Campbell, Kate 

Campbell, Peta 

Cantwell-Cargill, Lisa 

Carne, Peter 

Carter, Louisa 

Cassell, Iris 

Cassidy, Mark 

Cester, Mark 

Cester, Roberta 

Chadwick, Kerri 

Chadwick, Timothy 

Charlton, Karen 

Charpentier, Elizabeth 

Chatfield, Simon 

Cheong, Jeanie 

Cherny, Dean 

Cherny, Tanya 

Clancy, William 

Clark, Rowan 

Clarke, Sharyn 
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Clarke, Warren 

Cleven, David 

Collings, Anthony 

Collingwood, Kate 

Collingwood, Stewart 

Collins, Rhys 

Cooke, Penny 

Cooper, Elizabeth 

Cooper, Rob 

Corriero, Angela 

Crescia, Marco 

Crescia, Nadia 

Crisp, Joanne 

Croucher, Reagan 

Crowe, Simon 

Cullen, Felicity 

Cullen, Julie 

Cullum, Tracey 

Curran, Mary 

D'Amico, Melissa 

Date, James 

Davenport, Clyde 

Davenport, Deborah 

Davenport, Elisabeth 

Davenport, Lauren 

Davenport, Lucy 

Davey, Rebecca 

Dawes, Kynan 

Day, Amanda 

Day, Benjamin 

De Fazio, Tamie 

De Vere, Jonathan 

Delaney, Garry 

Delaney, Luke 

Denisenko, Georgia 

Devine, Alexandra 

Devine, Roger 

Dixon, Ben 

Doak, Simon 

Dodds, Danielle 

Dodds, Nicholas 

Donnelly, Paul 

Dougherty, Elise 

Dougherty, Lucas 

Douglas, Jody 

Douglas, Naomi 

Dowling, Lyndon 

Drake, Kenneth 

Driver, Jayne 

Dunlop, Robert 

Dymond, Samantha 

Eagle, John 

Edmonds, Amber 

Edmonds, William 

Ellery, Andrea 

Ellery, Andrew 

Elliott, Caroline 

Elliott, Elise 

Elliott, Tom 

Enever, Matthew 

Etheredge, Linette 

Falcon, Hugh 

Farrell, Tim 

Fehring, Campbell 

Fenn, Jane 

Findlay, Anna 

Findlay, Peter 

Finkelstein, Maxine 

Fitzpatrick, Nicole 

Ford, Fiona 

Forsyth, Fleur 

Francis, Lucinda 

French, Chris 

French, Sharon 

Fulton, Christopher 

Garner, Katrina 

Garner, Peter 

Gasparini, Anthony 

Gay, Matt 

Gearing, Julie 

George, Alexandra 

George, Melissa 

Giummarra, Nicholas 

Gladding, Mark 

Gluyas, Sally 

Grant, Chris 

Grant, Karen 

Gregory, Janine 

Gregory, Robert 

Griffith, Ian 

Groves, Donna 

Gurvitch, Ronen 

Hafner, Brigitte 

Hamzic, Emina 

Handley, Wendy 

Hansen, Jocelyn 

Hansen, Richard 

Hansen, Soren 

Harrison, Jessica 

Harrison, Melinda 

Hassett, Amanda 

Hawker, Karen 

Haydon, Samantha 

Hebblewhite, Mark 

Heffernan, Jodi 

Hellmann, Wolfgang 

Henderson, Andrew 

Henderson, Olivia 

Herbstritt, Jemma 

Hershan, Amy 

Hershan, Dion 

Hibbins, Carmen 

Hibbins, Nick 

Hicks, Janet 

Hicks, Paul-Thomas 

Hider, Jane 

Higgins, Andrew 

Higgins, Melanie 

Hildebrand, Bruce 

Hildebrand, Mollie 

Hill, Karen 

Hinks, Damian 

Hipwell, Trina 

Hogg, Brendon 

Holt, Simon 

Hone, Imogen 

Hopkinson, Mark 

Hopkinson, Tatenda 

Horne, Craig 

Horne, Michelle 

Horstead, Martyn 

Hosking, Gregory 

Houghton, Peter 

Houlihan, Christine 

Howell, Deborah 

Howell, Rob 

Hoyle, Michael 

Huddle, Samantha 

Huett, Lisa 

Hugginson, Zoe 

Hughes, Ana 

Hughes, Martin 

Hulyer, Danielle 

Humphrys, Andrew 

Hunt, Georgina 

Hunter, Alix 

Hutchinson, Richard 

Hutton, Jonathon 

Hyams, Rob 

Hyatt, Sally 

Hyatt, Vladislav 

Hynes, Craig 

Hyslop, John 

Hyslop, Karin 

Jack, Alistair 

Jack, Livinia 

Jaksa, Yvette 

James, Josh 

Jeanes, Alina 

Jenkins, John 

Johnstone, Chris 

Johnstone, Irene 

Kanaan, Richard 

Kay, Sarah 

Kemp, Nathalie 

Kendrick, Melanie 

Kenny, Joanna 

Keogh, Geoffrey 

Kirby, Georgie 

Kirby, James 

Kitto, Cassandra 

Kleverlaan, Monty 

Knott, Natarsha 

Kogler, Thea 

Konstantinou, Nicky 

Kool, Brandon 

Kostiuk, Renee 

Kottek, Wilga 

Kousis, Artemisia 

Kozulin, Nina 

Kunaratnam, Hamsa 

Laity, Kim 

Lally, Kate 

Landau, Adam 

Langdon, Tim 

Langford, Craig 

Langley, Brett 

Langley, Larissa 

Larobina, Amanda 

Larobina, Marco 

Latchford, Prudence 

Laughton, Carolyn 

Laughton, Simon 

Leahy, Judith 

Lebeau, Arthur 

Leckel, Jana 

Lee, Emily 

Lee, Mark 

Lempriere, Kristine 

Leonard, Tina 

Leong, Nerita 

Levy, Anouche 

Levy, Michael 

Lew, Evelyn 

Lightfoot, Jessica 

Lillywhite, David 

Lillywhite, Karen 

Locke, Andrei 

Longwill, Dee 

Lowden, Kevin 

MacGowan, Stewart 

Macwhirter, Natasha 

Magree, Margot 

Mair, Catherine 

Mannock, Caroline 

Mansour, Andrew 

Marks, Sally 

Martyn, Penelope 

Martyn, Simon 

Marziano, Adrian 

Marziano, Justine 

Mason, Sarah-Jo 

Mather, Laura 

Maxwell, Michael 

May-Konning, Zoe 

Mcallister, Craig 

Mccoy, Joanne 

McCraith, Stuart 

Mcdonald, Jason 

McKellar, Dianna 

McKellar, Jonathon 

Mckenzie, Susan 
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Mckinnon, Anna 

McKinnon, Matthew 

Mclean, Olivia 

Mclellan, David 

McManamey, Alexandra 

McMillan, Brendan 

McPherson, Cameron 

McPherson, Melissa 

Melbourne, Jennifer 

Meredith-Smith, Emily 

Meredith-Smith, Jonathon 

Merrigan, Sarah 

Meszaros, William 

Meysztowicz, Ed 

Mezger, Anna 

Middendorp, Anton 

Middendorp, Robyn 

Miglic Dean, Katherine 

Miles, Caroline 

Miles, Travis 

Milosavljevic, Branko 

Mollenkopf, Brooke 

Mollenkopf, Lucinda 

Morabito, Vickie 

Morgan, Vanessa 

Munro, Chris 

Murdoch, Fiona 

Murray, Tarena 

Myers, Stacey 

Naarden, Sarah 

Neal, David 

Ness, Patrick 

Neville-Smith, James 

Newnham, Sarah 

Nicholls, Sarah 

Nickless, Rachel 

Nikakis, Andrew 

Nikakis, Georgie 

Norris, Sallie 

Northcote, Hayley 

Nott, Vicki 

Noxon, Justin 

Oaten, Marni 

O'Connor, Chris 

Oddie, Sue 

O'Donohue, Joanna 

O'Donohue, Jonathan 

Ogilvie, Brooke 

Ogilvie, Nicholas 

Oke, Michael 

O'Neil, Sophie 

O'Shaughnessy, Julia 

Pagliaro, Belinda 

Parris, Vincent 

Parsons, Joanne 

Patti, Brendan 

Patti, Julie 

Paul, Courtney 

Paynter, David 

Perry, Ben 

Perry, Felicity 

Phillips, Amber 

Phillips, Justin 

Pitt, Simon 

Poore, Richard 

Porter, Virginia 

Pound, Jane 

Prentice, Elizabeth 

Price, Cameron 

Price, James 

Price, Pir 

Radojkovic, Andrew 

Ralph, Jacqueline 

Ralph, Matthew 

Randles, William 

Ransom, Amanda 

Rawling, Susan 

Redlich, Adrian 

Redlich, Christina 

Redlich, Erin 

Redlich, Robert 

Reid, Darryl 

Reid, Matt 

Reith, Simon 

Renison, Krysha 

Richards, Regan 

Richardson, Rachel 

Richmond, Janine 

Riseley, Brendan 

Roberts, Jennifer 

Rogers, Ben 

Rogers, Megan 

Ross, Fraser 

Rouse, Hannah 

Rozema, Priscilla 

Russell, Sharon 

Rydberg, Christine 

Sandow, Pippa 

Scher, Kim 

Schultz, Rebecca 

Scoffern, Felicity 

Scorpo, Sarah 

Scott, Martin 

Serato, Anne 

Sexton, Kathleen 

Seymour, Catherine 

Silver, Diane 

Silver, John 

Simmons, Medine 

Singh, Kasha 

Singh, Shail 

Slater, Bronwen 

Smith, Matthew 

Snow, Gillian 

Snow, Jeremy 

Somogyi, Sarah 

Spatt, Jesse 

Spooner, Carolynne 

Stagoll, Eve 

Steele, Anna 

Stern, Kate 

Stewart, Carolyn 

Stewart, Grant 

Strauss, Christian 

Sverdvik, Monique 

Sydney, Adam 

Tabain, Isabelle 

Tabain, Nik 

Talbot, Daryl 

Talbot, Simon 

Tankovich, Emma 

Tatchell, Rowan 

Taylor, Judith 

Taylor, Paul 

Theodore, James 

Theodore, Nicoletta 

Thistleton, Tanya 

Thomas, Amanda 

Thomas, Michelle 

Tierney, Christie 

Tierney, Jane 

Tierney, Louise 

Treadwell, Anne 

Trembath, Ed 

Turnbull, Annelies 

Tyrrell, Justin 

Unsworth, Lisa 

Urban, Alice 

van den Boom, Daniel 

Vincent, Courtney 

Vomero, Elissa 

Walley, Michelle 

Walliss, Simon 

Walliss, Theresa 

Walmsley, Helen 

Walter, Andrew 

Walter, Lucy 

Ward-Ambler, Ian 

Ward-Ambler, Penelope 

Warner, Fiona 

Waters, Donna 

Watt, Chris 

Wetenhall, Peter 

Wheatley, Megan 

Whiteoak, Brett 

Whiter, Jane 

Whiter, Richard 

Williams, Brett 

Williams, Heidi 

Williams, Janet 

Williams, Neil 

Williams, Nina 

Williams, Ruth 

Williams, Sandra 

Willis, Kylie 

Wilson, Naomi 

Wise, Rachael 

Wisken, James 

Wisken, Natalie 

Wolfe, Bryce 

Wolfe, Leanne 

Woods, Elisa 

Woods, Lou 

Woodward, Corinne 

Wotton, Amy 

Wright, Elizabeth 

Yates, Caitlin 

Zabojec, Robert 

Zappone, Michael 

General 

Balfour, Frankie 

Barry, Tiarni 

Bleeker, Stella 

Chadwick, Jaime 

Chadwick, Kobi 

Collingwood, Sam 

Condon, Emily 

Crowe, Clementine 

Crowe, Jemima 

Dowling, Elise 

Dowling, Jack 

Farrell, Chloe 

Francis, India 

French, Erin 

Giummarra, Fynn 

Horstead, Olive 

Hosking, Hugh 

Kobylarz, Elise 

Lempriere, Max 

Lempriere, Thomas 

Megas, Poppy 

Morgan, Abigail 

Scott, Imogen 

Steele, Samuel 

Thistleton, Innes 

Tierney, Eva 

Tierney, Isla 

Wetenhall, Charlie 

Wetenhall, Eleanor 

Whiter, Annabel 

Wilson, Hazel 

Wolfe, Montgomery 
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